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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

CAVCO INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, current
Accounts receivable, net
Short term investments
Current portion of consumer loans redeliganet
Inventories
Assets held for sale
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Debtor-in-possession note receivable
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Restricted cash

Investments

Consumer loans receivable, net
Inventory finance receivable, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill and other intangibles, net

Total asser

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Construction lending lines

Current portion of securitized financings

Noncontrolling interest note payable
Total current liabilities

Securitized financings
Deferred income taxes

Redeemable noncontrolling interest

Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 1,000 §itares authorized;
No shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, $.01 par value; 20,000 gltres authorized;
Outstanding 6,890,796 and 6,817 &G es, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities, redeemable noncontrolling intsrand
stockholders' equ

December 31, March 31,
2011 2011
(Unaudited)
$ 35,397 $ 76,513
6,271 436
12,928 6,571
5,121 -
21,619 -
62,334 16,036
5,285 -
7,919 2,495
- 40,060
5,860 4,720
162,734 146,831
452 -
9,626 -
101,578 -
21,328 17,759
50,698 35,993
81,587 68,859
$ 428,00 $ 269,44.
$ 8,421 $ 3,495
54,864 26,245
5,599 -
10,797 -
- 36,000
79,681 65,740
83,376 -
13,327 17,214
85,228 35,819
69 68
131,368 129,211
34,974 21,390
(20) -
166,391 150,669
$ 428,00 $ 269,44.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financia@ents
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CAVCO INDUSTRIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Income from operations

Interest expense

Other income

Gain on bargain purchase

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net income

Less: net income attributable to redeemable
noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to Cavco
common stockholde

Net income per share attributable to Cavco
common stockholders:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
December 31,

Nine Months Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2011 2010
$ 114564 $ 39,612 $ 343553 $ 133,005
87,642 34,269 272,243 114,042
26,922 5,343 71,310 18,963
20,535 5,275 59,113 16,000
6,387 68 12,197 2,963
(2,043) - (5,420) -
440 511 1,055 957
- - 22,009 -
4,784 579 29,841 3,920
(1,804) (289) (3,001) (1,581)
2,980 290 26,840 2,339
1,303 266 13,256 1,117
$ 1671 $ 24 $ 1358 $ 1,22
$ 024 $ 000 $ 198 $ 019
$ 024 $ 000 $ 196 $ 0.8
6,890,517 6,651,928 6,873,078 6,578,732
6,951,958 6,841,802 6,036,054 6,860,385

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents
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CAVCO INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ende
December 3:
2011 201C

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net incom $ 26,84( $ 2,33¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income tc

cash provided by (used in) operating acési

Depreciation and amortizat 4,23: 1,02¢
Provision for credit loss 36¢ 178
Deferred income ta» 26¢& (265)
Share-based compensation exf 69E 50¢
Non-cash interest inco (1,373 (214;
Non-cash interest expe 517
Gain on sale of property, plant and poqén
including assets held for : (63) (10)
Impairment of property, plant and equépr - 248
Gain on bargain purch (22,009 -
Gain on sale of loe (4,285 -
Loss on sale of investme 14 -
Changes in operating assets and lieds
Restricted ca (363 14
Accounts receivak (3,235 4,971
Consumer loans origine (57,356 -
Principal payments on consumer sa@teivabl 7,44% -
Proceeds from sales of consumenrs 57,97¢ -
Inventorie 931 (1,053
Prepaid expenses and other cuasset: (2,643 (326,
Inventory finance receiva (3,602 (5,657
Accounts payable and accrued litdol 4,29¢ (4,034
Net cash provided by (used in) operatingvétiEs 8,657 (2,251)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equiyti (2,273 (680)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant eguipmen
including assets held for ! 3,73¢ 16
Purchase of Palm Harbor assets andim
liabilities, net of cash acqui (67,639 -
Purchases of investme (2,995 -
Proceeds from sale of investm 4,83( -
Investment in debtor-in-possession meteivabl (6,238 (38,302
Proceeds from payoff of debtor-in-posg®@snote receivab 45,30 -
Net cash used in investing activities (25,275) (38,966)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of stock op 1,46¢ 1,391
Net proceeds from construction lending 1,62t -
Proceeds from issuance of note pa - 14,00(
Payments on Virgo di (19,456 -
Payments on securitized financings (8,130) -
Net cash (used in) provided by financing\aiiéis (24,498) 15,391
Net decrease in cash and cash equive (41,116 (25,826
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p 76,51: 74,98¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of p $ 35,39 $ 49,16:
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa
Cash paid during the period for income t $ 3,11: $ 1,44%
Cash paid during the period for inte $ 5,13¢ $ -

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents
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CAVCO INDUSTRIES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Finantsée®ents of Cavco Industries, Inc., and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or “Cavdhave been prepared pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Comong$BEC”) for Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and
Article 10 of SEC Regulation S-X. Accordingly, t&n information and footnote disclosures normally
included in financial statements prepared in acwacd with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP") in the United States of America have be@emdensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and
regulations.

In the opinion of management, these statementsdedll of the normal recurring adjustments neagssa
to fairly state the Company’s Consolidated Finanstatements. The Consolidated Statements of Gpesa
and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows fomtieeim periods are not necessarily indicative efrisults
or cash flows for the full year. Certain prior mefiamounts have been reclassified to conform teentiperiod
classification. The Company has evaluated subse@vents after the balance sheet date of DeceBiher
2011 through the date of the filing of this repaith the SEC and other than entering into an agesno sell
an idled facility in Phoenix, Arizona as discusgetbw; there were no disclosable subsequent evdits.
Company suggests that these Consolidated Finadizisdments be read in conjunction with the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Not€otsolidated Financial Statements included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with tBEC on June 3, 2011 (the “Form 10-K”).

During fiscal year 2010, the Company and an investrpartner, Third Avenue Value Fund (“Third
Avenue”), formed Fleetwood Homes, Inc. (“Fleetwddaimes”), with a contribution of $35.0 million eaftr
equal fifty-percent ownership interests. On Audu&t2009 (the “Fleetwood Acquisition Date”), Fleetvd
Homes (i) acquired seven operating manufacturedihgulants, two idle factories, all related equé )
accounts receivable, inventory, certain trademarnistrade names, intellectual property, and sgetifi
contracts and leases; and (ii) assumed expresantatrabilities pertaining to certain of the preus
operations of a predecessor company.

The results of the Fleetwood Homes operations baea included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes in accordancehwithrovisions of Financial Accounting Standardsuis!
Accounting Standards Codification (“FASB ASC") 81lpnsolidation(*ASC 810"). Management has
determined that, under GAAP, although Fleetwood ke®m only fifty-percent owned by the Company, @avc
has a controlling interest and is required to faltysolidate the results of Fleetwood Homes. Thegry
factors that contributed to this determination wees/co’s board and management control of Fleetwood
Homes. To that end, members of Cavco’s managehmahall of the seats on the board of directors of
Fleetwood Homes. In addition, as part of a managerservices agreement among Cavco, Fleetwood Homes
and Third Avenue, Cavco provides all executivedenanagement services to Fleetwood Homes including,
among other things, general management oversigirkating and customer relations, accounting and cas
management. Third Avenue’s financial interestleeFvood Homes is considered a “redeemable
noncontrolling interest,” and is designated as snd¢he Consolidated Financial Statements (see Rdte

During fiscal year 2011, Fleetwood Homes, througtwiholly-owned subsidiary, Palm Harbor Homes,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Palm Harbor” or “‘fadHarbor Delaware”), entered into an agreement (the
“Purchase Agreement”) with Palm Harbor Homes, lad=]orida corporation, and certain of its subsida
(collectively “Palm Harbor Florida”) to purchasebstantially all of the assets and assume spedifibdities
of Palm Harbor Florida, pursuant to an auction pssaunder Section 363 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Cole.
effective date of the transaction was April 23, 2Qthe “Acquisition Date”), except for Palm Harbor’
acquisition of the stock of Standard Casualty G @ggregate gross purchase price was $83.9 malfidris
exclusive of transaction costs, specified lial@btassumed and post-closing adjustments (thesstradjots
have been recorded). Approximately $45.3 milliothaf purchase price was used to retire the Debtor-|
Possession (“DIP”) loan previously made by Fleetdvblomes to Palm Harbor Florida. The purchase price
was funded by Fleetwood Homes’ cash on hand, aldtigequal contributions of $36.0 million each frohe
Company and Third Avenue. On June 7, 2011, reguylatpproval of the acquisition of Standard Casuath.
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was received from the Texas Department of Insurandeon June 10, 2011 (the “SCC Acquisition Date”),
Palm Harbor Delaware completed the purchase ahthgance subsidiary.

Palm Harbor Delaware acquired five operating mactufed housing production facilities, idled facésri
in nine locations, 49 operating retail locationse @ffice building, real estate, all related equapt accounts
receivable, customer deposits, inventory, certaidegmarks and trade names, intellectual propemty, a
specified contracts and leases. In addition, dseofcquisition Date, Palm Harbor Delaware purctasdkeof
the outstanding shares of CountryPlace Acceptaince. CCountryPlace Mortgage, Ltd. and their wholly-
owned finance subsidiaries (collectively, “Countgde”). Palm Harbor Delaware also acquired alhef t
outstanding shares of Standard Casualty Co., Stdhasurance Agency, Inc. and Palm Harbor Insurance
Agency of Texas, Inc. (collectively, “Standard’Further, Palm Harbor Delaware assumed certairlitialiof
Palm Harbor Florida, including primarily debt faitds of the finance subsidiaries (see Note 21)e flesults
of the Palm Harbor operations since the Acquisibdate and SCC Acquisition Date have been includdte
Consolidated Financial Statements and the relatédsNn accordance with the provisions of ASC 810.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, thepaagnsold two idled production facilities. The
Buda, Texas facility sold for $1.3 million, and tGasa Grande, Arizona facility sold for $1.3 mitijo
resulting in insignificant effects on the ConsotithStatements of Operations. As of December @11 2
$1.4 million was reclassified from property, plamd equipment to assets held for sale relateceto th
anticipated sale of an idled manufacturing facilityated in Phoenix, Arizona. As of the date bihdj, the
Company has entered into an agreement, but théssade final.

Standard is domiciled in Texas and is primarilypacsalty writer of manufactured home physical daenag
insurance. Standard holds insurance licenses itipleustates; however, a significant portion ofvitstings
occurs in Texas. In addition to writing direct pidis, Standard assumes and cedes reinsurancedrdthary
course of business (see Note 12).

CountryPlace originates single-family residenti@rtgages and services, for itself and others, camfg
mortgages, non-conforming land-home mortgages atufactured homes chattel loans. CountryPlace is
authorized by the U.S. Department of Housing arfsadiDevelopment (“HUD”) to directly endorse Federal
Housing Administration (“FHA”) Title | and Title Iimortgage insurance, is approved by the Government
National Mortgage Association (“GNMA” or “Ginnie M#d) to issue GNMA-insured mortgage-backed
securities, and is authorized to sell mortgagearid,service mortgages for, the Federal Nationatgdge
Association (“FNMA” or “Fannie Mae”). A conformingnortgage or loan is one that conforms to the
guidelines of a government-sponsored enterprisdy 88 Fannie Mae, or a government agency, suchlas F
a non-conforming mortgage or loan does not confarthese guidelines (see Note 5).

Revenue RecognitiorRevenue from homes sold to independent retadaysnerally recognized when the
home is shipped, at which time title passes tarttiependent retailer, and collectability is reasynassured.
Homes sold to independent retailers are generdifigrepaid for prior to shipment or floorplan firzed by the
independent retailer through standard industryngeeents, which include repurchase agreements.
Manufacturing sales financed under repurchase agmes are reduced by a provision for estimated
repurchase obligations (see Note 14). The redogniff revenue from homes sold under inventoryrfcea
programs involving funds provided by the Compangiégerred until such time that payment for thetesla
inventory finance note receivable is received ly@ompany (see Note 6). Retail sales by Compamedw
retail locations are recognized when the custorasrdmtered into a legally binding sales contraethome is
delivered and permanently located at the custorsige'saccepted by the customer, title has traresteand
funding is reasonably assured.

At the Acquisition Date, management evaluated caresudoans receivable held for investment by
CountryPlace to determine whether there was eviglehdeterioration of credit quality and if it wasobable
that CountryPlace would be unable to collect albants due according to the loans’ contractual terifse
Company also considered expected prepayments tinchesd the amount and timing of undiscounted
expected principal, interest and other cash floWlse Company determined the excess of the loarigpool
scheduled contractual principal and contractuare@dt payments over the undiscounted cash flowscteg
as of the Acquisition Date as an amount that isagoteted into interest income (the non-accretable
difference). The remaining difference is accretgd interest income over the remaining life of thans
(referred to as accretable yield). Interest incom&onsumer loans receivable is recognized asahes.
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For loans originated by CountryPlace and held &e,doan origination fees and gains or lossesatess
are recognized upon sale of the loans as net sales.

Premium income from insurance policies issued @sdraed by Standard is recognized over the
contractual term. Premium amounts collected arertiad on a straight-line basis into net sales tivedife
of the policy. Premiums earned are net of reinstgar@ded. Policy acquisition costs are also apsattas
cost of sales over the life of the policy.

Consumer Loans Receivabl€onsumer loans receivable consists of manufactuveding loans
originated by CountryPlace (securitized, held freistment, or held for sale) and construction acesion
mortgages. CountryPlace was acquired on AprieB3,1 in conjunction with the Palm Harbor transactio
The fair value of consumer loans receivable wasutailed as of the Acquisition Date, as determinethb
present value of expected future cash flows, witlallowance for loan loss recorded.

Loans held for investment consist of loan contraottateralized by the borrowers’ homes and, insom
instances, related land. Construction loans inngsgyjare stated at the aggregate amount of cuseufatided
advances. Loans held for sale consist of loanraot# collateralized by single-family residentiadmgages.
Loans held for sale are stated at the lower of @ostarket on an aggregate basis. Loans held ferasa loans
that, at the time of origination, are originatedhathe intent to resell in the mortgage markentestors, such
as Fannie Mae, with which the Company has preiagigiurchase agreements, or to sell as part ohai&i
Mae insured pool of loans. Certain direct loanioagon costs for loans held for sale are expeiased
incurred.

Prior to being acquired by the Company, on July2®5 and March 22, 2007, CountryPlace completed
two securitizations of factory-built housing loateivables. These two securitizations were accdupteas
financings, which use the portfolio method of aating in accordance with ASC 31Receivables —
Nonrefundable Fees and Oth@ASC 310"). The securitizations included provissofor removal of accounts,
retention of certain credit loss risk by Countryd@land other factors that preclude sale accounfitige
securitizations under ASC 86Dransfers and Servicinggoth securitizations were accounted for as stzed
borrowings; therefore, the related consumer loansivable and securitized financings were included
CountryPlace’s financial statements. The Companyiaed these balances during the first quartersoff
2012 as a part of the Palm Harbor transaction.eSime Acquisition Date, the acquired consumer loans
receivable and securitized financings are accouiateith a manner similar to ASC 310-30pans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit QualftASC 310-30").

Allowance for Loan Losse$he primary portion of the allowance for loan lesseflects the Company’s
judgment of the probable loss exposure on our itorgrinance receivable as of the end of the repgrt
period. The allowance for loan loss is developeal partfolio level. A range of probable lossesakualated
and the Company makes a determination of the lsaéstae within the range of loan losses. The Combes
historically been able to resell repossessed hoteseby mitigating loss experience. If a defacttwrs and
collateral is lost, the Company is exposed to tdgke full value of the home loan. If the Compal®termines
that it is probable that a borrower will defaulsecific reserve is determined and recorded witien
estimated allowance for loan loss. The Companyrdszban allowance for loan loss of $202,000 and
$169,000 at December 31, 2011 and March 31, 2@spectively (see Note 6).

Another portion of the allowance for loan lossdates to consumer loans receivable originated by
CountryPlace after the Acquisition Date. This albowe for loan losses reflects CountryPlace’s juddrog
the probable loss exposure on its loans originsitecke the Acquisition Date in the held for investine
portfolio as of the end of the reporting period.

CountryPlace accounts for the loans that weexistence at the Acquisition Date in a manner sini
ASC 310-30. Management evaluated such loans the dfcquisition Date to determine whether there was
evidence of deterioration of credit quality and ifvas probable that CountryPlace would be unabletlect
all amounts due according to the loans’ contraderahs.

Over the life of the loans, CountryPlace continieesstimate cash flows expected to be collected.
CountryPlace evaluates at the balance sheet da&tihertithe present value of its expected cash flows,
determined using the effective interest rate, lesaehsed and, if so, recognizes an allowance &orluss
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subsequent to the Acquisition Date. The presdokevaf any subsequent increase in the loan pootish
cash flows expected to be collected is used frseverse any existing allowance for loan lossy Aemaining
increase in cash flows expected to be collectedséglfhe amount of accretable yield recognized on a
prospective basis over the loan pool’'s remainifeg(ee Note 5).

CountryPlace has modified payment amounts andferdst rates for borrowers that, in management’s
judgment, exhibited the willingness and abilityctmtinue to pay and met certain other conditions.
CountryPlace considers a modified loan a troublsat destructuring when two conditions are metth@
borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, afig concessions are made by CountryPlace thabula/not
otherwise consider for a borrower with similar ridlaracteristics. CountryPlace no longer considerdified
loans to be troubled debt restructurings once tbdified loan is seasoned for six months, is nondelent
under the modified terms and is at a market ratatefest at the modification date.

Investments Management determines the appropriate classditaf its investment securities at the time
of purchase. The Company’s investments includé&etable debt and equity securities that are held as
available-for-sale. All investments classifiedaaailable-for-sale are recorded at fair value \aitly
unrealized gains and losses reported in accumutdbed comprehensive income (loss), net of tax if
applicable. Realized gains and losses from theefadecurities are determined using the specific
identification method.

Management regularly makes an assessment to detewhiether a decline in value of an individual
security is other-than-temporary. The Company idens the following factors when making its asse=sm
(i) the Company’s ability and intent to hold the@stment to maturity, or a period of time sufficiemallow
for a recovery in market value; (ii) whether ipigbable that the Company will be able to colleetamounts
contractually due; and (iii) whether any decisi@s lheen made to dispose of the investment pritheto
balance sheet date. Investments on which there isirealized loss that is deemed to be other{raporary
are written down to fair value with the loss reamdn earnings.

Goodwill and Other Intangible§.he Company accounts for goodwill and other infalegassets in
accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 3Bfangibles—Goodwill and OthgfASC 350”). As such,
the Company tests goodwill annually for impairmeyteporting unit and records an impairment chafrties
implied fair value of a reporting unit, includingadwill, is less than its carrying value. As of Baetber 31,
2011, all of the Company's goodwill of $67.3 millis attributable to its manufacturing reportingtun
Certain intangibles are considered indefinite-lieed others are finite-lived and are amortized their
useful lives. Intangible assets are tested annt@llimpairment.

Reserve for Property-Liability Insurance Claims &léims ExpenseStandard establishes reserves for
claims and claims expense ("loss") on reportedusnmdported claims of insured losses. Standardsvies)
process takes into account known facts and intexjioes of circumstances and factors, includingn@aad's
experience with similar cases, actual claims gagtprical trends involving claim payment patteans
pending levels of unpaid claims, loss managemesgrams, product mix, contractual terms, changésn
and regulation, judicial decisions, and economitditions. In the normal course of business, Stahday
also supplement its claims processes by utilizmgl tparty adjusters, appraisers, engineers, itspeand
other professionals and information sources tosasaed settle catastrophe and non-catastrophedelaims.
The effects of inflation are implicitly consideradthe reserving process. The applicable reseslanbe was
$562,000 as of December 31, 2011.

Incurred But Not Reported LiabilitieBecause reserves are estimates of unpaid podfdosses that
have occurred, including incurred but not repo(td8INR") losses, the establishment of appropriatgerves,
including reserves for catastrophes, is an inhremicertain and complex process. The ultimate obkisses
may vary from recorded amounts, which are basedamagement's best estimates. The highest degree of
uncertainty is associated with reserves for logsasred in the current reporting period as it eams the
greatest proportion of losses that have not besorted or settled. Standard regularly updatesgsmve
estimates as new information becomes availableaam¥ents unfold that may affect the resolution of
unsettled claims. Changes in prior period resestienates are recorded in the period such changes ar
determined. The applicable reserve balance wa8,$24 as of December 31, 2011.



Other Income.Other income totaled $440,000 and $511,000 fthhee months ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. For the nine montldee@ December 31, 2011 and 2010, other incomeetbtal
$1,055,000 and $957,000, respectively. In fis€dlZ other income consists of interest relatedebtbr-in-
Possession note receivable and inventory finarmsvable balances, and of interest income earnezhsim
balances.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loAsgumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is
comprised of unrealized gains and losses on aveifab-sale investments.

Recent Accounting PronouncemeihtsJuly 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Stand&lpdate
(“ASU”) 2010-20,Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosures about the €@dality of Financing Receivables
and the Allowance for Credit Losseaghich requires entities to provide new disclostretheir financial
statements about their financing receivables, dholy credit risk exposures and the allowance feditosses
on a disaggregated basis. In April 2011, the FASBed ASU 2011-02 Creditor's Determination of
Whether a Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt Restniiat). ASU 2011-02 clarifies when creditors should
classify loan modifications as troubled debt regdtitings. In addition, ASU 2011-02 deferred thezefifve
date of the disclosures about troubled debt restrings in ASU 2010-20 to periods beginning aftene) 15,
2011. As of December 31, 2011, the Company hastedael of the aforementioned provisions of ASU @01
20 and ASU 2011-02.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010R8%iness Combinations (Topic 805): Disclosure of
Supplementary Pro Forma Information for BusinessnBmations The amendments in this update are
effective prospectively for business combinatiamswhich the acquisition date is on or after thgibeing of
the first annual reporting period beginning onfeeraDecember 15, 2010. The amendments affected the
Company'’s disclosures of pro forma information sunding the Palm Harbor acquisition (see Note 21).

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-64jr Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and DisceRaquirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRBe
amendments are effective for public companiesrftarim and annual periods beginning after Decertiber
2011. This update changes the wording used toilesmiany of the requirements for measuring faingand
for disclosing information about fair value measneats. The amendments in this update result in comm
fair value measurement and disclosure requiremer@®AP and International Financial Reporting Stal$
(“IFRS"). The Company is currently evaluating tHeet ASU 2011-04 will have on the Company’s
disclosures in the Notes to Consolidated Finar&tialements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-©8mprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of
Comprehensive Incomé& he amendments in this update are effectivpddtic companies for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginniftgrddecember 15, 2011. In this update, an ehtity the
option to present the total of comprehensive ingdimee components of net income, and the comporénts
other comprehensive income either in a single oootis statement of comprehensive income or in two
separate but consecutive statements. In both ahyaoeentity is required to present each compaoofemest
income along with total net income, each componéonther comprehensive income along with a total fo
other comprehensive income, and a total amourtddorprehensive income. This update eliminates ttierop
to present the components of other comprehensogeria as part of the statement of changes in stéadatsd
equity. The Company is currently evaluating tifeafASU 2011-05 will have on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and disclosures.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201 1+i@ngibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing
Goodwill for Impairment. The amendments in this update are effective diblip companies for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2011. In this updategntity has the option to first assess qualiédtctors to
determine that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg amount.

If, after assessing the totality of events or amstances, an entity determines it is more likenthot that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg amount, then it is required to perform thstfstep of the
two-step impairment test. However, if an entithdodes otherwise, then performing the two-stepaiimmpent
test is unnecessary. Early adoption is permitfidaie Company is currently evaluating the effect AZ11-08
will have on the Company’s Consolidated Financtakt&nents and disclosures.



For a description of other significant accountimdigies used by the Company in the preparatiotsof i
Consolidated Financial Statements, please refidote 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial $tat&s in

the Form 10-K.

2. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of the following (in trands):
December 31, March 31,

2011 2011
Cash related to CountryPlace customer payments to b
remitted to third parties $ 2,766 $ -
Cash related to CountryPlace customers' principaliaterest
payments on securitized loans to be remittdabhdholders 2,358 -
Cash related to retail homebuyer deposits heldust t 1,147 436
Other restricted cash 452 -
$ 6,723 $ 436

3. Investments

Available-for-sale securities were acquired dutimg first quarter of fiscal 2012 as a part of tiani
Harbor acquisition. In accordance with ASC 8Basiness Combinatiorf$ASC 805"), the individual

securities were valued at fair value as of the Agijan Date and, therefore, no individual secuhgs been in
a continuous unrealized loss position for longantth2 months as of December 31, 2011. The follguable
summarizes the Company’s available-for-sale investraecurities, gross unrealized gains and logstfair

value, aggregated by investment category (in thuilsa

December 31, 2011

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury and Government Agencies  $ 1,279% 10 $ - $ 1,289
Mortgage-backed securities 4,583 16 (38) 4,561
States and political subdivisions 1,192 33 - 1,225
Corporate debt securities 3,938 6 (24) 3,920
Marketable equity securities 3,814 117 (179) 3,752

$ 14806 $ 182 $  (241) $ 14747

Based on the Company’s ability and intent to hbklinvestments for a reasonable period of time

sufficient for a forecasted recovery of fair valttee Company does not consider any investments tuter-

than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2011.

The Company’s investments in marketable equity rééesi consist of investments in common stock of
industrial and other companies ($2.3 million of tbtal fair value and $169,000 of the total unsadi losses)
and bank trust, insurance, and public utility compa ($1.5 million of the total fair value and $200Q of the

total unrealized losses).



The amortized cost and fair value of the Compamyestment securities, by contractual maturity, are
shown in the table below (in thousands). Expectaturties will differ from contractual maturitieetause
borrowers may have the right to call or prepaygailons with or without call or prepayment penailtie

December 31, 2011

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in less than one year $ 1,373 $ 1,369
Due after one year through five years 5,802 5,831
Due after five years through ten years 510 523
Due after ten years 3,307 3,272
Marketable equity securities 3,814 3,752

$ 14,806 $ 14,747

Realized gains and losses from the sale of seesiatie determined using the specific identification
method. Gross gains realized on the sales of ime&g securities for the three and nine monthse@nde
December 31, 2011 were approximately $31,000 atd$5, respectively. Gross losses realized were
approximately $45,000 and $65,000 for the threeramel months ended December 31, 2011, respectively.
4. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands)

December 31, March 31,

2011 2011
Raw materials $ 19,160 $ 10,208
Work in process 5,263 2,499
Finished goods and other 37,911 3,329

$ 62,334 $ 16,036

5. Consumer Loans Receivable

The Company acquired consumer loans receivablegltie first quarter of fiscal 2012 as part of the
Palm Harbor transaction. Acquired consumer loansivable held for investment were acquired atvalue
and subsequently are accounted for in a mannelasitniASC 310-30. Consumer loans receivable farld
sale are carried at the lower of cost or markaie/alThe following table summarizes consumer loans
receivable (in thousands):

December 31,

2011
Loans held for investment (acquired on Acquisitizate) $ 113,317
Loans held for investment (originated after Acctinsi Date) 215
Loans held for sale 4,693
Loans held - construction advances on non-confagmiortgages 5,351
Consumer loans receivable 123,576
Deferred financing fees and other, net (379)
Consumer loans receivable, net $ 123,197
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As of the Acquisition Date, management evaluatetsomer loans receivable held for investment by
CountryPlace to determine whether there was evilehdeterioration of credit quality and if it wasobable
that CountryPlace would be unable to collect albants due according to the loan’s contractual terise
Company also considered expected prepayments ndhted the amount and timing of undiscounted
expected principal, interest and other cash floWlse Company determined the excess of the loarigpool
scheduled contractual principal and contractuaregt payments over all cash flows expected aseof t
Acquisition Date as an amount that cannot be aetrieto interest income (the non-accretable diffee.
The remaining difference is accreted into inteiresdme over the remaining life of the loans (reddrto as
accretable yield). Interest income on consumeardoaceivable is recognized as net sales.

December 31, Acquisition
2011 Date

Consumer loans receivable held for investment +raotual amount $ 313493 $ 339,166
Purchase Discount

Accretable (107,376) (118,335)

Non-accretable (92,469) (100,151)
Allowance for loan losses - -
Less consumer loans receivable reclassified as atsets (331) -
Total consumer loans receivable held for investment

(acquired on Acquisition Date), net $ 113,317 $ 120,680

Over the life of the loans, the Company continwesstimate cash flows expected to be collected by
CountryPlace. At the balance sheet date, the Coyngealuates whether the present value of expectsial
flows, determined using the effective interest,rates decreased and, if so, recognizes an allowiantman
loss subsequent to the Acquisition Date. The pitesdue of any subsequent increase in the loaligpactual
cash flows expected to be collected is used firseéverse any existing allowance for loan lossy Aamaining
increase in cash flows expected to be collectedstéglfhe amount of accretable yield recognized on a
prospective basis over the loan pool's remainifeg i

The changes in accretable yield on acquired conslaaes receivable held for investment were as
follows:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2011 2011
Balance at the beginning of the period $ 111,381 $ -
Additions - 118,335
Accretion (4,005) (10,959)
Balance at the end of the period $ 107,376 $ 107,376

CountryPlace’s consumer loans receivable considiganl-rate, fixed-term, fully-amortizing single-
family home loans. These loans are either sediyedmanufactured home, excluding the land uporchvhi
the home is located (chattel property loans arallriestallment sale contracts), or by a combinatb the
home and the land upon which the home is locatsl frroperty mortgage loans). The real propertitgage
loans are primarily for manufactured homes. Comthiland and home loans are further disaggregatdiaeby
type of loan documentation: those conforming torwiirements of Government-Sponsored Enterprises
(GSEs), and those that are non-conforming. In imssances, CountryPlace’s loans are secured iogtdién
position and are provided for the consumer purcbsehome. In rare instances CountryPlace mayigeo
other types of loans in second-lien or unsecuresitipas. Accordingly, CountryPlace classifies dams
receivable as follows: chattel loans, conformingtg@&ges, non-conforming mortgages, and other loans.
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In measuring credit quality within each segment elads, CountryPlace uses commercially available
credit scores (“FICO”). At the time of each loaniggination, CountryPlace obtained credit scoremfeach
of the three primary credit bureaus, if availabl@ evaluate credit quality of individual loans, ryPlace
uses the mid-point of the available credit scopedf, only two scores are available, the Compargsithe
lower of the two. CountryPlace does not updatdittrireau scores after the time of origination.

The following table disaggregates CountryPlacedsgiconsumer loans receivable as of December 31,
2011, for each class by portfolio segment and tdility indicator (in thousands):

Consumer Loans Held for Investment Consumer
Asset Class Securitized Securitized Construction Ldbéald
Credit Quality Indicator 2005 2007 Unsecuritizeddvances For Sale Total
Chattel loans
0-619 $ 1474 $ 982 $ 1,013 $ - $ - $ 3,469
620-719 21,447 14,349 1,295 - - 37,091
720+ 24,833 16,772 786 - - 42,391
Subtotal 47,754 32,103 3,094 - - 82,951
Conforming mortgages
0-619 - - 419 1,146 - 1,565
620-719 - - 1,124 2,563 2,814 6,501
720+ - - 11 1,642 1,879 3,532
Subtotal - - 1,554 5,351 4,693 11,598
Non-conforming mortgages
0-619 97 866 2,881 - - 3,844
620-719 2,140 8,769 5,308 - - 16,217
720+ 2,265 5,132 1,550 - - 8,947
Subtotal 4,502 14,767 9,739 - - 29,008
Other loans
Subtotal - - 19 - - 19

$52256 $ 46870 $ 14406 $ 5351 $ 4,693 $ 123,576
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Loan contracts secured by collateral that is ggagcally concentrated could experience higher rates
delinquencies, default and foreclosure losses ltteam contracts secured by collateral that is more

geographically dispersed. Consumer loans recaiadl located in the key states shown below wih th
corresponding percentage of loans aged 61 day®@:m

December 31, 2011
Aging 61 days or more

Portfolio Percent of state's Percent of total
State concentration loan balance loan balance
Texas 42.8% 0.96% 0.41%
Florida 6.7% 3.22% 0.21%
New Mexico 6.6% 4.42% 0.29%
Arizona 6.2% 5.22% 0.32%
Alabama 5.5% 1.61% 0.09%
California 2.0% 0.00% 0.00%
All others 30.2% 3.16% 0.97%
100.0% 2.29%

The States of California, Florida and Arizona, éma lesser degree Texas, have experienced economic
weakness resulting from the decline in real estaliges. The risks created by these concentratians been
considered by management in the determinationeofticretable yield and the adequacy of any alloe&rc

loan losses. Other than Texas, no other statesdragkntrations in excess of 10% of the princiddmce of
the consumer loans receivable as of December 31.,.20

6. Inventory Finance Receivables and Allowance fdroan Loss

The Company’s inventory finance receivables balaeesists of two classes: (i) amounts loaned by the
Company under participation inventory financinggreoms; and (ii) direct inventory financing arrangsns
for the home product inventory needs of our indépeandistribution base.

Under the terms of the participation programs,Goenpany provides loans to independent floorplan
lenders, representing a significant portion offtiveds that such financiers then lend to retailerinance their

inventory purchases of our products. The partt@panventory finance receivables are unsecureck g
obligations of the independent floorplan lenders.

Under the terms of the direct inventory financeagements, the Company provides all of the invgntor
finance funds. The notes are secured by the ioveobllateral and other security depending on the
borrower’s (retailer’'s) circumstances. The otleemts of direct inventory finance arrangements vary

depending on the needs of the borrower and therappty for the Company, but generally follow thense
tenets as the participation programs.

Inventory finance receivables, net, consist offttilewing by class of financing receivable (in ttsaunds):

December 31, March 31,

2011 2011
Direct inventory finance receivables $ 14920 $ 12,157
Participation inventory finance receivables 6,610 5,771
Allowance for loan loss (202) (169)

$ 21328 $ 17,759
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The Company evaluates the potential for loss frismparticipation inventory finance programs based o
the independent lender’s overall financial stap#ihd has determined that an applicable allowanickan
loss was not needed at either December 31, 20Mbarh 31, 2011.

With respect to the direct inventory finance notxeivable, the risk of loss is spread over nunmgerou
borrowers. Borrower inventory levels and actiatg monitored in conjunction with third-party sesvi
providers, where applicable, to estimate the pakfar loss on the related notes receivable, aBrgig
potential exposures including repossession caatsarketing expenses, impairment of value and #heofi
collateral loss. The Company has historically balele to resell repossessed unused homes, theiggsiting
loss experience. If a default occurs and collhtsdast, the Company is exposed to loss of thieshAlue of
the home loan. If the Company determines thatgtrobable that a borrower will default, a spedifiserve is
determined and recorded within the estimated altmedor loan loss. The Company recorded an alloeanc
for loan loss of $202,000 and $169,000 at Decer@be011 and March 31, 2011, respectively. The
following table represents changes in the estimaliedvance for loan losses, including related add# and
deductions to the allowance for loan loss applieablthe direct inventory finance receivables liiousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 185 $ 181 $ 169 $ 40
Provision for credit losses 17 117 33 258
Loans charged off, net of recovel - (85) - (85)
Balance at end of period $ 202 $ 213 $ 202 $ 213

The following table disaggregates inventory finanoes receivable and the estimated allowance#or |
loss for each class of financing receivable by @atidn methodology (in thousands):

Direct Inventory Finance Participation Inventory &irce
December 31, March 31, December 31, March 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011

Inventory finance notes receivat

Collectively evaluated for impairme $ 13,12« $ 11,11¢ $ - -
Individually evaluated for impairme 1,79¢ 1,041 6,61( 5,771

$ 14920 $ 12,157 $ 6,610 $ 5771

Allowance for loan los:

Collectively evaluated for impairme  $ (202, % (169, $ - $ -
Individually evaluated for impairme - -

$ (202) $ (169) $ - $ -
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Loans are subject to regular review and are givanagement’s attention whenever a problem situation
appears to be developing. Loans with indicatonsodéntial performance problems are placed on wieth
status and are subject to additional monitoringsardtiny. Nonperforming status includes loansaoted
for on a non-accrual basis and accruing loans gyiticipal payments past due 90 days or more. The
Company'’s policy is to place loans on nonaccrugtlstwhen interest is past due and remains ungaithgs
or more or when there is a clear indication thatlibrrower has the inability or unwillingness toane
payments as they become due. Payments receiveohaccrual loans are recorded on a cash bastdgfirs
interest and then to principal. Charge-offs oaghien it becomes probable that outstanding amouititaat
be recovered. At December 31, 2011, the Compahpat have any loans on nonaccrual status and atas n
aware of any potential problem loans that wouldehawnaterial effect on the inventory finance reables
balance. The following table disaggregates the zoy's inventory finance receivables by class aedit
quality indicator (in thousands):

Direct Inventory Finance Participation Inventory &iice
December, 31 March 31, December, 31 March 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011
Risk profile based on payment activ
Performing $ 14,602 $ 11,995 $ 6,610 $ 5,771
Watch lis 31¢ 162 - -

Nonperforming - - - -
$ 14920 $ 12,157  $ 6,610 $ 5771

The Company has concentrations of inventory finarates receivable related to factory-built homes
located in the following states, measured as agpéage of inventory finance receivables princidabce
outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and March(gill:2

December 31 March 31,

2011 2011
Arizona 26.1% 21.9%
Texas 12.8% 18.0%
California 4.0% 9.0%

The States of California, Arizona, and to a leskggree Texas, have experienced economic weakness.
The risks created by these concentrations have dcmeidered in the determination of the adequadief
allowance for loan losses. The Company did noelencentrations in excess of 10% of the prindjpddnce
of the inventory finance receivables in any othates as of December 31, 2011 or March 31, 2011,
respectively.
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at @egbreciation is calculated using the straight-himethod
over the estimated useful lives of each assetmastid useful lives for significant classes of asaet as
follows: buildings and improvements 10 to 39 yearg] machinery and equipment 3 to 25 years. Repads
maintenance charges are expensed as incurrederBrgdant and equipment consist of the followfimg
thousands):

December 31, March 31,

2011 2011

Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land $ 21,106 $ 16,046
Buildings and improvements 25,102 19,672
Machinery and equipment 15,434 11,453
61,642 47,171
Accumulated depreciation (10,944) (11,178)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 50,698 $ 35,993

During the nine months ended December 31, 201pgpty plant and equipment with a cost of $3.2
million and accumulated depreciation of $1.8 millwas reclassified from property, plant and equipnte
assets held for sale related to the anticipatedafadn idled manufacturing facility located in Bhix,
Arizona. As of the date of filing, the Company leadered into an agreement to sell the propertytHeu
transaction has not yet closed. During the ninatimended December 31, 2011, assets held fook$le8
million, consisting of land located in Millersbur@regon, was reclassified to property, plant andpmgent.

8. Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Intangible assets principally consist of goodwithdemarks and trade names, state insurance lgense
customer relationships, technology, insurance lassiim force, and insurance policies and reneghtsi
Goodwill, trademarks and trade names and statednsa licenses are indefinite-lived intangible esaad
are tested for impairment annually and wheneventsver circumstances indicate that more likely thah
impairment has occurred. During the nine monthedrdecember 31, 2011 and 2010, no impairment eepens
was recorded. Finite-lived intangibles are amodiaeer their estimated useful lives and are revieioe
possible impairment whenever events or changesdarastances indicate that carrying amounts mayaot
recoverable. The value of customer relationshigsrisrtized over 4 to 11 years, technology over Z0to
years, insurance business in force over one yehingarance policies and renewal rights over 15s/ea
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Goodwill and other intangibles consist of the fallng (in thousands):

December 31, 2011

March 31, 2011

Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Cargy
Indefinite lived: Amount  Amortization Amount Amount  Amtigation = Amount
Goodwill $ 67,346 $ - $ 67,346 $ 67,346 $ - $ 67,346
Trademarks and trade names 6,250 - 6,250 800 - 800
State insurance licenses 1,100 - 1,100 - - -
Total indefinite-lived
intangible assets 74,696 - 74,696 68,146 - 68,146
Finite lived:
Customer relationships 6,200 (931) 5,269 800 (87) 713
Insurance business in force 2,070 (1,642) 428 - - -
Technology 900 (63) 837 - - -
Insurance policies and
renewal rights 374 (17) 357 - - -
Total goodwill and other
intangible assets $ 84240% (2,653) $ 81587 $ 68,946 $ (87) $ 68,859

Amortization expense recognized on intangible asdeting the three and nine months ended December
31, 2011 was $880,000 and $2.6 million, respegtivéimortization expense of $14,000 and $40,000 was
recognized during the three and nine months endgmamber 31, 2010, respectively.

9. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (indhsands):

December 31, March 31,
2011 2011
Estimated warranties $ 9,809 $ 9,371
Customer deposits 8,332 1,857
Salaries, wages and benefits 6,841 4,342
Unearned insurance premiums 5,528 -
Deferred margin 4,192 4,305
Accrued insurance 2,733 1,731
Accrued taxes 1,789 707
Accrued volume rebates 1,207 885
Reserves related to consumer loans sold 1,186 -
Reserve for repurchase commitments 748 597
Insurance loss reserves 562 -
Other (various) 11,847 2,450
$ 54,864 $ 26,245
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10. Warranties

Homes are generally warranted against manufactaefects for a period of one year commencing at the
time of sale to the retail customer. Estimatedscodating to home warranties are provided atitite of sale.
The Company has recorded a liability for estimdtgdre warranty costs relating to homes sold basgpeoh
management’s assessment of historical experieter$aan estimate of the amount of homes in the
distribution channel and current industry trendstivity in the liability for estimated warrantiegas as
follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 10,809% 11,891 $ 9,371 $ 13,891
Liability assumed wit
Palm Harbor transacti - - 1,932 -

Charged to costs and expenses 1,797 890 7,259 3,176
Payments and deductic (2,707 (1,990 (8,663 (6,276
Balance at end of period $ 9899 $ 10,791 $ 9,899 $ 10,791

11. Debt Obligations

The Company acquired securitized financings duttiegfirst quarter of fiscal 2012 as a part of tladniP
Harbor acquisition. Acquired securitized finanamwgere acquired at fair value, which resulted dfisaount,
and subsequently are accounted for a manner sitoilRBC 310-30 to accrete the discount.

The Company considers expected prepayments ameagss the amount and timing of undiscounted
expected principal, interest and other cash flawsbnsumer loans receivable held for investment to
determine the expected cash flows on securitizezh@iings and the contractual payments. The anodunt
contractual principal and contractual interest pagts due on the securitized financings in excesdl chsh
flows expected as of the Acquisition Date canncad@eted into interest expense (the non-accretable
difference). The remaining amount is accreted imtierest expense over the remaining life of thiegakion
(referred to as accretable yield).

December 31, Acquisition
2011 Date
Securitized financings — contractual amount $ 122,431$ 134,205
Purchase Discount
Accretable (28,258) (32,072)
Non-accretable (1) - -
Total securitized financings, net $ 94,173 $ 102,133

@ Because the contractual payments on securitinegiding are determined by actual cash flows, the
Company expects that there will not be a non-aabtetdifference.

Over the life of the loans, the Company continwesstimate cash flows expected to be paid on sSexadti
financings. The Company evaluates at the balameet slate whether the present value of its sereuliti
financings, determined using the effective interat#, has increased or decreased. The presemt abhny
subsequent change in cash flows expected to beagpidts the amount of accretable yield recognared
prospective basis over the securitized financingrsaining life.
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The changes in accretable yield on securitizedhfiimgs were as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2011 2011
Balance at the beginning of the period $ 29,779% -
Additions - 32,072
Accretion (1,521) (3,814)
Balance at the end of the period $ 28,258 $ 28,258

On July 12, 2005, prior to the acquisition of P&arbor and CountryPlace, CountryPlace completed its
initial securitization (2005-1) for approximatel§4k.0 million of loans, which was funded by issubands
totaling approximately $118.4 million. The bondsrerissued in four different classes: Class Atalitty
$36.3 million with a coupon rate of 4.23%; Clas® Aotaling $27.4 million with a coupon rate of 4242
Class A-3 totaling $27.3 million with a coupon rafet.80%; and Class A-4 totaling $27.4 million v
coupon rate of 5.20%. Maturity of the bonds igat/ing dates beginning in 2006 through 2015 angwe
issued with an expected weighted average matufridy6® years. For accounting purposes, this trditgac
was structured as a securitized borrowing. Aseddinber 31, 2011, the Class A-1 and Class A-2 bloads
been retired.

On March 22, 2007, CountryPlace, completed its s@securitization (2007-1) for approximately $116.5
million of loans, which was funded by issuing bomatsling approximately $101.9 million. The borere
issued in four classes: Class A-1 totaling $28l8an with a coupon rate of 5.484%; Class A-2 totg $23.4
million with a coupon rate of 5.232%; Class A-3alotg $24.5 million with a coupon rate of 5.593%da
Class A-4 totaling $25.1 million with a coupon rafes.846%. The bonds mature at varying datesnioéuy
in 2008 through 2017 and were issued with an ergestighted average maturity of 4.86 years. For
accounting purposes, this transaction was alsotsted as a securitized borrowing. As of Decendlder
2011, the Class A-1 and Class A-2 bonds had berade

12. Reinsurance

Standard is primarily a specialty writer of manuémed home physical damage insurance. Certain of
Standard’s premiums and benefits are assumed fnoinceded to other insurance companies under various
reinsurance agreements. The ceded reinsurancevagreeprovide Standard with increased capacityriie w
larger risks and maintain its exposure to lossiwitis capital resources. Standard remains obliyfde
amounts ceded in the event that the reinsurer®tmeet their obligations. Substantially all of i@tard’s
assumed reinsurance is with one entity.

The effects of reinsurance on premiums written @anthed are as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended ~ SCC Acquisition Date to

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2011
Written Earned Written Earned
Direct premiums $ 578 $ 395 $ 1,207 $ 806
Assumed premiums - nonaffilic 2,212 2,511 5,69: 5,72k
Ceded premiums - nonaffilie (658 (658 (1,171 (1,271
Net premiums $ 2132 $ 2248 $ 5729 $ 5,360

Typical insurance policies written or assumed kan8ard have a maximum coverage of $300,000 per
claim, of which Standard cedes $240,000 of theafdkss per reinsurance. Therefore, Standard taas
risk of loss limited to $60,000 per claim on typipalicies. Amounts are recoverable by Standardutbh
reinsurance for catastrophic losses in excess@d$80 per occurrence up to a maximum of $7.5 onilln
the aggregate.
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13. Income Taxes

The Company’s deferred tax assets primarily résoith financial statement accruals not currently
deductible for tax purposes and differences irettguired basis of certain assets, and its defeaseliabilities
primarily result from tax amortization of goodwdlhd other intangible assets. The Company comyiiibs
the provisions of FASB ASC 74Mhcome Taxe§'ASC 740”), which clarifies the accounting forcome taxes
by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold»agasition is required to meet before being recoegiin
the financial statements. ASC 740 also providédagce on derecognizing, measurement, classifitatio
interest and penalties, accounting in interim sjalisclosure and transition. The amount of cogrized
tax benefits recorded by the Company is insignificand the impact on the effective tax rate if all
unrecognized tax benefits were recognized woulth&ignificant. The Company classifies interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitaxrekpense.

Income tax returns are filed in the U.S. federekfliction and in several state jurisdictions. lity2011,
the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) completeceitamination of the Company’s federal income taurret
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009. The eration resulted in an insignificant payment of siddal
taxes. The Company is no longer subject to exainimay the IRS for years before fiscal year 200he
Company believes that its income tax filing posis@nd deductions will be sustained on audit ams dot
anticipate any adjustments that will result in g&emal change to the Company’s financial positibhe total
amount of unrecognized tax benefit related to arjiqular tax position is not anticipated to change
significantly within the next 12 months. The pr&ien for income taxes generally represents inc@xest
paid or payable for the current year plus the changleferred taxes during the year.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Repurchase ContingencieBhe Company is contingently liable under termsepiurchase agreements
with financial institutions providing inventory famcing for retailers of its products. These arramg&s,
which are customary in the industry, provide fa thpurchase of products sold to retailers in Yemeof
default by the retailer. The risk of loss undeisthagreements is spread over numerous retailegsride the
Company is obligated to pay generally declines tivemperiod of the agreement (generally 18 to 36thm)
calculated from the date of sale to the retailag the risk of loss is further reduced by the resalue of the
homes. The maximum amount for which the Companyasasingently liable under such agreements
approximated $11.5 million at December 31, 201theuit reduction for the resale value of the horiés.
Company applies FASB ASC 46Buaranteeg“ASC 460"), and FASB ASC 450-2Q0ss Contingencies
(“ASC 450-20"), to account for its liability for peirchase commitments. Under the provisions of ABQ, the
Company records the greater of the estimated \adltlee non-contingent obligation or a contingeabiiity
for each repurchase arrangement under the progisibASC 450-20. The Company recorded an estimated
liability of $748,000 and $597,000 at DecemberZ11,1 and March 31, 2011, respectively, relatethése
commitments.

Letters of CreditTo secure certain reinsurance contracts, Starfdezdn irrevocable letter of credit of
$5.0 million outstanding related to assumed prersiasassurance that Standard will fulfill its reiasce
obligations. This letter of credit is secured bytai@ of the Company’s investments. Standard alamtains
an irrevocable standby letter of credit of $2.0lionl related to a supply bond for a constructioojget for
Palm Harbor Homes. CountryPlace maintains anacable standby letter of credit of $100,000 related
state licensing requirements. The Company main&®Hs00,000 outstanding letter of credit to satibgy
remaining requirements of the self-funded workeoshpensation program which concluded on Septenther 3
2006. There have been no draws on any of the atoreomed letters of credit.

Construction-Period MortgageS€ountryPlace funds construction-period mortgagesugh periodic
advances during the period of home constructionthétime of initial funding, CountryPlace commiits
fully fund the loan contract in accordance withradetermined schedule. Subsequent advances anegaorit
upon the performance of contractual obligationshayseller of the home and the borrower. Constoeti
period mortgages are carried in the consolidatémhba sheet at the actual amount of cumulative rezbs
which are included in consumer loans receivable. fbkal loan contract amount, less cumulative adesn
represents an off-balance sheet contingent commitofeCountryPlace to fund future advances.
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Loan contracts with off-balance sheet commitmergssammarized below (in thousands):

December 31,

2011
Construction loan contract amount $ 9,105
Cumulative advanc (5,351
Remaining construction contingent commitment $ 3,754

Representations and Warranties of Mortgages .SotaintryPlace sells loans to GSEs and whole-loan
purchasers. In connection with these activitiegyriyPlace provides to the GSEs and whole-loanhasers,
representations and warranties related to the Isalds These representations and warranties génesklte
to the ownership of the loan, the validity of thenlsecuring the loan, the loan’s compliance withdriteria
for inclusion in the sale transactions, includilgnpliance with underwriting standards or loan cidte
established by the buyer, and CountryPlace’s ghdideliver documentation in compliance with apalile
laws. Generally, representations and warrantieslmagnforced at any time over the life of the lo&ipon a
breach of a representation, CountryPlace may hérestjto repurchase the loan or to indemnify aypfant
incurred losses. Repurchase demands and clainmsdemnification payments are reviewed on a loatelay
basis to validate if there has been a breach rieguiepurchase. CountryPlace manages the riskpofchase
through underwriting and quality assurance prastar& by servicing the mortgage loans to investor
standards. CountryPlace maintains a reserve feetbentingent repurchase and indemnification otitiga.
This reserve of $403,000 as of December 31, 2@itlyded in accrued liabilities, reflects managensent
estimate of probable loss. CountryPlace consi@ewrmiety of assumptions, including borrower perfance
(both actual and estimated future defaults), hisdbrepurchase demands and loan defect ratesinoats the
liability for loan repurchases and indemnificatioghere were no claim requests during the ninethson
ended December 31, 2011, and one claim open fewedor $5,200 as of December 31, 2011.

Interest Rate Lock Commitmeniis.originating loans for sale, CountryPlace issnésrest rate lock
commitments (“IRLCS”) to prospective borrowers dhud-party originators. These IRLCs represent an
agreement to extend credit to a loan applicaranhaigreement to purchase a loan from a third-aigynator,
whereby the interest rate on the loan is set poidkman closing or sale. These IRLCs bind CountigPlto
fund the approved loan at the specified rate régssaf whether interest rates or market pricesifarar
loans have changed between the commitment dattharaiosing date. As such, outstanding IRLCs are
subject to interest rate risk and related loan gaée risk during the period from the date of lR&C through
the earlier of the loan sale date or IRLC expiratiate. The loan commitments generally range bet\86e
and 180 days; however, borrowers are not obligatetbse the related loans. As a result, Countgdlia
subject to fallout risk related to IRLCs, whichrézalized if approved borrowers choose not to ctosthe
loans within the terms of the IRLCs. CountryPlac@ntains a reserve for loan price adjustmentsead|t
this interest rate risk. The reserve of $806,000fda3ecember 31, 2011 is included in accrued litdd. In
determining the adequacy of this reserve, Courgigd’tonsiders recent fallout rate experience by tfp
origination source and forward loan pricing infotioa provided by investors for various loan typed a
terms.

Legal Matters The Company is party to certain legal proceedihgtsarise in the ordinary course and are
incidental to its business. Certain of the clairaeging against the Company in these proceedinggeasl|
among other things, breach of contract and warrgmgduct liability and personal injury. Althoughlidation
is inherently uncertain, based on past experienddtee information currently available, managenuk@s not
believe that the currently pending and threateitig@iion or claims will have a material adversteef on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, liguydir results of operations. However, future events
circumstances currently unknown to managementdeikrmine whether the resolution of pending or
threatened litigation or claims will ultimately leaa material effect on the Company’s consolidaiteshtial
position, liquidity or results of operations in aiojyure reporting periods.
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15. Stockholders’ Equity

The following table represents changes in stocldrsldequity attributable to Cavco’s stockholderd an
redeemable non-controlling interest for the ninenthe ended December 31, 2011 (dollars in thousands)

Equity Attributable to Cavco Stockholders
Redeemable Additional Accumulated
Noncontrolling Common Stock Paid-in Retained Other

Interest Shares Amount  Capital Earnings Loss Total
Balance, March 31, 2011 $ 35,819 6,817,606 $ 68 $129,211 $21,390 $ - $ 150,669
Stock option exercises - 73,190 1 1,462 - - 1,463
Share-based compensation - - - 695 - - 695
Note payable conversion 36,113 - - - - - -
Net income 13,256 - - - 13,584 - 13,584
Other comprehensive loss (40) - - - - (20) (20)
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 85,2p86,890,796 $ 69 $131,368 $ 34974 $ (20) $ 166,391

16. Other Comprehensive Income

The difference between net income and total congrgilie income for the three and nine months ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is asvolfim thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Net income $ 2980 $ 290 $ 26,840 $ 2,339
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
investments, net of tax (1) 242 - (40) -
Comprehensive income $ 3222 $ 290 $ 26,800 $ 2,339

@ Pre-tax unrealized gain on available-for-sale itmesits for the three months ended December 31,
2011 was $368,000. Pre-tax unrealized loss onadblaifor-sale investments for the nine months
ended December 31, 2011 was $60,000.

17. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company maintains stock incentive plans whestbgk option grants or awards of restricted stock
may be made to certain officers, directors anddaployees. The plans, which are shareholder apgrov
permit the award of up to 1,350,000 shares of thi@any’s common stock, of which 269,026 shares were
still available for grant at December 31, 2011. éWloptions are exercised, new shares of the Cortgpany
common stock are issued. Stock options may ngtéeted below 100% of the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock at the date of grant andrgdély expire seven years from the date of gr&tack
options and awards of restricted stock vest oymrand determined by the plan administrator, tylhjcaone
to five year period. The stock incentive plansvite for accelerated vesting of stock options adaval of
restrictions on restricted stock awards upon agham control (as defined in the plans).
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Stock-based compensation cost charged against entmmthe three and nine months ended December 31,
2011, was approximately $239,000 and $695,000entisely. The Company recorded stock-based
compensation expense of $182,000 and $509,006ddhtee and nine months ended December 31, 2010,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2011, total unrecognized comgdenscost related to stock options was
approximately $2.2 million and the related weighteg@rage period over which it is expected to begeized
is approximately 2.2 years.

The following table summarizes the option activitiyhin the Company’s stock-based compensation plans
for the nine months ended December 31, 2011:

Number
of Shares
Outstanding at March 31, 2011 401,500
Granted 80,100
Exercised (72,850)
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 408,750
Exercisable at December 31, 2011 170,025

A summary of restricted stock activity within ther@pany’s share-based compensation plans and changes
for the nine months ended December 31, 2011 isls:

Number

of Shares
Nonvested at March 31, 2011 498
Vested (340)
Nonvested at December 31, 2011 158
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18. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed bastteaveighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the reporting period. Dilutedn@ags per common share is computed based on the
combination of dilutive common share equivalentenprised of shares issuable under the Companyig-sha
based compensation plans and the weighted-avetagleen of common shares outstanding during the
reporting period. Dilutive common share equivaléntsude the dilutive effect of in-the-money optsio
purchase shares, which is calculated based orvérage share price for each period using the trgasock
method. The following table sets forth the compataof basic and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Net income attributable to Cavco
common stockholde $ 1,677 $ 24 $ 13,58¢ $ 1,22¢
Weighted average shares outstanc
Basit 6,890,51 6,651,92 6,873,07 6,578,73,
Common stock equivalent
treasury stock method 61,441 189,874 62,976 281,653
Diluted 6,951,958 6,841,802 6,936,054 6,860,385
Net income per share attributable to Cavco
common stockholders:
Basic $ 024 % 0.00 $ 198 $ 0.19
Diluted $ 024 3% 0.00 $ 196 $ 0.18

Anti-dilutive common stock equivalents excludednfrthe computation of diluted earnings per share for
the three months ended December 31, 2011 and 28020,427 and 9,036, respectively. There were25,74
and 1,368 anti-dilutive common stock equivalentduded from the computation of diluted earnings gi&are
for the nine months ended December 31, 2011 and, 26&pectively.
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19. Fair Value Measurements

The book value and estimated fair value of the Camgjs financial instruments are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31, 2011 March 31, 2011

Book Estimated Book Estimated

Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents (1) $ 35,397$ 35397 $ 76,513 $ 76,513
Restricted cash (1) 6,723 6,723 436 436
Investments (2) 14,747 14,747 - -
Consumer loans receivable (3) 123,197 121,311 - -
Inventory finance receivable (4) 21,328 21,328 17,759 17,759
Construction lending line (4) 5,599 5,599 - -
Securitized financings (5) 94,173 97,456 - -

@ The fair value approximates book value due tdrikguments’ short term maturity.

@ The fair value is based on quoted market prices.

® Includes consumer loans receivable held for imaest, held for sale and construction advances. The
fair value of the loans held for investment is lobse the discounted value of the remaining priricipa
and interest cash flows. The fair value of thentoheld for sale approximates book value since the
sales price of these loans is known as of DeceBibe2011.

@ The fair value approximates book value based orestimarket rates and the revolving nature of the
investments.

®) The fair value is estimated using recent traneastbf asset-backed securities.

In accordance with ASC 82Bair Value Measurements and Disclosu(&SC 820”), fair value is
defined as the exchange price that would be reddorean asset or paid to transfer a liability it price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for #setaor liability in an orderly transaction betwesarket
participants on the measurement date. ASC 820Cealslishes a fair value hierarchy which requareentity
to maximize the use of observable inputs and mirentie use of unobservable inputs when measuring fa
value. The standard describes three levels otsnjat may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for tteh assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level tgwj such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market dataufustantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities.

Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supporyelittte or no market activity and that are sigo#nt to

the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Thax@@any had no level 3 securities as of
December 31, 2011.

The Company utilizes the market approach to medaiurgalue for its financial assets and liabiktieThe
market approach uses prices and other relevanniafon generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
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Assets measured at fair value on a recurring laasisummarized below (in thousands):
As of December 31, 2011

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Securities issued by the U.S Treasury and Goverhmen $ 1,289 $ - $ 1289 $ -
Mortgage-backed securitigs 4,561 - 4,561 -
Securities issued by states and political subdinisi) 1,225 - 1,225 -
Corporate debt securities 3,920 - 3,920 -
Marketable equity securitieg 3,752 3,752 - -

@ Unrealized gains or losses on investments amrded in accumulated other comprehensive loss at
each measurement date.

No significant transfers between Level 1 and L&vetcurred during the nine months ended December
31, 2011. The Company’s policy regarding the reicay of transfers between levels is to record arghs
transfers at the end of the reporting period.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is d@sed but not required to be recognized in therumaaheet
on a recurring basis are summarized below (in tods):

As of December 31, 2011

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans held for investment $ 113,566 $ - $ - $ 113,566
Loans held for sale 5,070 - 5,070 -
Loans held - construction advances 2,675 - - 2,675
Inventory finance receivable 21,328 - - 21,328
Construction lending facility 5,599 - 5,599 -
Securitized financings 97,456 - 97,456 -

The Company records impairment losses on long-lassits held for sale when the fair value of such
long-lived assets is below their carrying valugse Company records impairment charges on longtive
assets used in operations when events and circacestandicate that long-lived assets might be ingplaand
the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be gewlat those assets are less than their carryingsior he
Company recorded no impairment charges on asset$dnesale or used in operations during eithertthiee
or nine months ended December 31, 2011.

Assets measured on a nonrecurring basis also mahyplaired loans (nonaccrual loans) disclosed iteNo
5 and loans held for sale. No recent sales have éexcuted in an orderly market of manufacturedéntoan
portfolios with comparable product features, cretiracteristics, or performance. Impaired loaes ar
measured using Level 3 inputs that are calculas@wjudiscounted future cash flows. Loans held &be are
measured at the lower of cost or fair value usiagdl 2 inputs that consist of commitments on haaohf
investors. These loans are held for relatively tsperiods, typically no more than 45 days. As allteshanges
in loan-specific credit risk are not a significasimponent of the change in fair value. The cosvanfs held
for sale is currently lower than the fair value.

ASC 825 Financial Instrument$*ASC 825”), requires disclosure of fair value infeation about financial
instruments, whether or not recognized in the lwaasieet, for which it is practicable to estimaie ¥alue.
Fair value estimates are made as of a specifid potime based on the characteristics of the finn
instruments and the relevant market informationeYgtavailable, quoted market prices are used hierot
cases, fair values are based on estimates usiag\ahuation techniques. These techniques involve
uncertainties and are significantly affected bydesumptions used and the judgments made regaiskng
characteristics of various financial instrumenisgdunt rates, estimates of future cash flows reuaxpected
loss experience, and other factors. Changes imgsgns could significantly affect these estimaied the
resulting fair values. Derived fair value estimatasnot be substantiated by comparison to indepg¢nde
markets and, in many cases, could not be realizad immediate sale of the instrument. Also, beeadis
differences in methodologies and assumptions wsedtimate fair values, the Company’s fair vallesul
not be compared to those of other companies.
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Under ASC 825, fair value estimates are based mstirmx financial instruments without attempting to
estimate the value of anticipated future businesistiae value of assets and liabilities that arecnosidered
financial instruments. Accordingly, the aggregate ¥alue amounts presented do not represent tiherlyig
market value of the Company.

20. Debtor-In-Possession Note Receivable

On November 29, 2010, Fleetwood Homes, Inc. enteteda DIP Revolving Credit Agreement (the “DIP
Agreement”) and a Security Agreement (the “DIP Sigghgreement”) with Palm Harbor Florida and cémta
of its subsidiaries. Palm Harbor Florida was a ufiacturer and marketer of factory-built housing and
provider of related financing and insurance. AlsdNmvember 29, 2010, Fleetwood Homes’ newly-formed
subsidiary, Palm Harbor Delaware, entered into ssefAPurchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”)
with Palm Harbor Florida.

Palm Harbor Florida and those of its subsidiaties tvere parties to the DIP Agreement and the Risech
Agreement filed for chapter 11 bankruptcy protetiom November 29, 2010. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the DIP Agreement, Fleetwood Homegedg to provide up to $55.0 million for a debtor-in
possession credit facility to finance Palm Harboggrganization under chapter 11 of the U.S. Baptksu
Code. The DIP loan facility bore interest at 7% aenum. Palm Harbor Florida’'s obligations underDiie
Agreement were secured by a first position liersalstantially all of Palm Harbor Florida’s assétse credit
facility was partially used by Palm Harbor Florigeextinguish its Textron Financial Corporation tiglwility
and to fund post-petition operations, commitmeatsustomers, and employee obligations.

On April 23, 2011, the DIP credit facility was retil in conjunction with the closing of the acquisitof
Palm Harbor Florida, discussed further below.

21. Acquisition of Palm Harbor Homes, Inc.

Description of the Acquisitiorkleetwood Homes, through its wholly-owned subsidialm Harbor
Delaware, entered into the Purchase AgreementReatim Harbor Florida to purchase substantially fthe
assets, and assume specified liabilities, of Padmbbt Florida, pursuant to an auction process udetion
363 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. On March 1, 2Hm Harbor Delaware was selected as the suctessfu
bidder in the court auction. The transaction wgsreved and a sale order entered by the U.S. Batdyru
Court on March 4, 2011.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2012, Pafiarbor Delaware completed the purchase of the Palm
Harbor Florida assets and the assumption of spddifabilities pursuant to the Amended and RestAtsit
Purchase Agreement dated March 1, 2011. The m#edate of the transaction was April 23, 2011 (the
“Acquisition Date”), except for Palm Harbor’s acsjtion of the stock of Standard Casualty Co., which
occurred on June 10, 2011. The aggregate groskame price was $83.9 million and is exclusive of
transaction costs, specified liabilities assumetl@ost-closing adjustments. Of the purchase pfice,
approximately $45.3 million was used to retire dedtor-in-possession loan previously made by Fleetiv
Homes to Palm Harbor Florida; and (ii) $13.4 milliwas deposited in escrow pending regulatory agbtov
transfer the stock of Standard Casualty Co. to Asitipn Co., at which time the escrowed funds weteased
to the Palm Harbor Florida estate. The purchase pras funded by Fleetwood Homes’ cash on hawodgal
with contributions of $36.0 million each from the@pany and Third Avenue (see Note 23).

Palm Harbor Delaware acquired five operating mactufed housing production facilities, idled faceari
in nine locations, 49 operating retail locationse office building, real estate, all related equept)y accounts
receivable, customer deposits, inventory, certaidegmarks and trade names, intellectual propenty, a
specified contracts and leases. In addition, @aseoAcquisition Date, Palm Harbor Delaware purekeell of
the outstanding shares of CountryPlace Acceptancg. CCountryPlace Mortgage, Ltd. and their wholly-
owned finance subsidiaries. Palm Harbor Delawks@ &quired all of the outstanding shares of Stethd
Insurance Agency, Inc. and Palm Harbor Insurancendyg of Texas, Inc. On June 7, 2011, regulatory
approval of the acquisition of Standard Casualty\as received from the Texas Department of Insigan
and on June 10, 2011 (the “SCC Acquisition Dateglm Harbor Delaware completed the purchase of
Standard Casualty Co. Further, Acquisition Couasd certain liabilities of Palm Harbor Floridagliding
primarily debt facilities of the finance subsidesi
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The foregoing descriptions of the DIP AgreemenE Becurity Agreement, and Purchase Agreement do
not purport to be complete and are qualified irirtestirety by reference to the DIP Agreement, EHe
Security Agreement, and the Purchase Agreementwigce filed as Exhibits 10.1, 10.2, and 10.3,
respectively, to the Company’s Current Report omF8-K filed with the SEC on November 29, 2010.

The purchase of the Palm Harbor Florida assetsges\vurther operating capacity, increased home
production capabilities and distribution, and ettity financial and insurance businesses spedifibé
Company’s industry. The transaction further exgahithe Company’s geographic reach at a national kv
adding factories and retail locations serving tleethvest, South Central, Southeast and Mid-Atlarggions.
The Company believes it will have the opportunayathieve certain synergies and cost reductions by
eliminating redundant processes and overhead.

Acquisition Date Fair Value of Consideration Tragséd. The following table details the Acquisition
Date fair value of the consideration transferreddquire Palm Harbor (in thousands), of which $ildon

was in cash:
Acquisition Datt

Fair Value
Cash advanced to Palm Harbor under DIP financiraglied to purchase $ 44,117
Paid-in-kind interest on DIP financing, creditedptarchase price 1,184
Additional cash consideration 38,599
Total consideration transferred $ 83,900

Recording of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assiiribe acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method of accounting which requirespagiother things, that assets acquired and liegsilit
assumed be recognized at their fair values asecdicquisition date. The following table summarithes
provisional amounts recognized for assets acquainediabilities assumed as of the Acquisition DaBertain
estimated values are not yet finalized (see betwl)are subject to change, which could be sigmficdhe
allocation of the purchase price is still prelimmiypdue to the short duration since the Acquisiftate and will
be finalized upon completion of the analysis offie values of Palm Harbor’'s assets and specifasilities.
The Company will finalize the amounts recognizeavasobtain the information necessary to complege th
analysis. We expect to finalize these amount®as as possible but no later than one year from the
Acquisition Date.

28



The following table summarizes the provisionalrestied fair values of the assets acquired andiliakil
assumed at the acquisition dates (in thousands):

Initial Revised
Estimate Adjustments (3) Estimate

Cash and cash equivale $ 15,07% $ - $ 15,077
Restricted cas 5,924 - 5,924
Investment 16,63¢ - 16,63¢
Accounts receivable ( 3,21¢ - 3,21¢
Inventorie: 42,03« 5,19¢ 47,22¢
Prepaid expenses and other a: 2,781 - 2,781
Property, plant and equipm 13,78: - 13,78:
Assets held for sa 9,27¢ - 9,27¢
Consumer loans receiva 126,03( - 126,03(
Deferred income tax ass 14,53: - 14,53:
Intangible assets ( 15,29¢ - 15,29«
Total identifiable assets acquired $ 264,587 $ 5,195 $ 269,782
Accounts payable of the finance subsidic $ (1,917 $ - $ (1,917
Accrued liabilitie: (27,503 - (27,503
Construction lending lir (3,974 - (3,974
Securitized financing (101,786 - (101,786
Debt of the finance subsidiar (19,456 - (19,456
Deferred income tax liabilitit (7,271 (1,966 (9,237
Total liabilities assumed (161,907) (1,966) (163,873)
Net identifiable assets acquired 102,680 3,229 105,909
Bargain purchase recognized (18,780) (3,229) (22,009)
Net assets acquired $ 83,900 $ - $ 83,900

@

@

(©)

The fair value of accounts receivables acquire8j219, with the gross contractual amount
being $3,601. The Company determined that $382dnmei uncollectible.

Of the $15,294 of acquired intangible assets,Sbwlas assigned to trademarks and trade names and
$1,100 was assigned to state insurance licensésh wte considered indefinite-lived intangible dsse
and are not subject to amortization and $8,744agsagned to customer-related intangibles,
technology and insurance business in force, pgliaie renewal rights, subject to a weighted-average
useful life of approximately 5 years.

Accounting standards require that when the fdinevaf the net assets acquired exceeds the purchase
price, resulting in a bargain purchase gain, tlgiiser must reassess the reasonableness of thesvalu
assigned to all of the net assets acquired, ltmslassumed and consideration transferred. The
Company has performed such a reassessment andriehsded that the values assigned for the Palm
Harbor acquisition are reasonable. In the firstrgwaended June 30, 2011, the Company originally
reported a gain of $18.8 million, which has bedrospectively adjusted to $22.0 million as reflekcte
in the table above, representing a $0.23 increafiest quarter and year-to-date basic and diluted
earnings per share. The increase in the gain veatult of a $5.2 million revision to the value of
retail finished goods. The gain on bargain purehaas not taxable, causing a variation in the
customary relationship between income before inctaxes and income tax expense for the nine
month period ended December 31, 2011.
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In connection with the acquisition of Palm Harkegproximately $30 million was transferred from
Fleetwood Homes to the Palm Harbor Florida estiatéaing of the Palm Harbor transaction on Ap8] 2
2011 and $19.5 million was used to retire a cerdaint obligation of the Company’s new subsidiary,
CountryPlace, on May 10, 2011 (including payofttad loan, prepayment penalty and related lega) fees

During the three and nine months ended Decembet(@1,, the Company recognized acquisition-related
costs of $1,000 and $865,000, respectively. Thests were expensed as incurred. During the yehaden
March 31, 2011, the Company recognized $272,0@gfisition-related costs. These costs were rézegn
in selling, general and administrative expensetherConsolidated Statement of Operations. The @oyp
anticipates additional acquisition-related costthanfiscal year ended March 31, 2012 relatedagtirchase
of the Palm Harbor assets.

Because the Company purchased Palm Harbor oun&fdgatcy, the fair value of identifiable assets
acquired and specified liabilities assumed exceéaedair value of the consideration transferréd.
accordance with ASC 80Business Combinationgie Company consequently reassessed the recapaitib
measurement of identifiable assets acquired anzifggabliabilities assumed and concluded that thkiation
procedures and resulting measures were appropdat@. result, the Company recognized a gain ogabar
purchase of $22.0 million in its consolidated staats of operations for the nine months ended Dbeefi,
2011.

The recorded amounts are provisional and subjesitange primarily as follows:

« Amounts for inventory and property and equipnamet pending completion of certain confirmation of
physical existence, condition and valuation efforts

* Amounts for intangibles, property held for salensumer loans receivable, securitized financing
obligation, deferred income taxes and accruedliiigsi are pending finalization of valuation effert

A single estimate of fair value results from a ctewgseries of judgments about future events and
uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates asdraptions. Judgments used to determine the éstrfeir
value assigned to each class of assets acquirdibbilities assumed, as well as asset lives, caterally
impact results of operations.

For the three months ended December 31, 2011, Rattvor contributed net sales of $64.2 million and
net income of $1.5 million. For the period from @eguisition dates through December 31, 2011, thauats
included in the Company’s consolidated statemewjpefations were $197.1 million in net sales artd ne
income of $23.9 million, which included $22.0 nolii related to gain on bargain purchase.

Pro Forma Impact of Acquisition (unauditedhe following table presents supplemental pro #orm
information as if the acquisition of Palm Harbodracurred on April 1, 2010 (in thousands):

Consolidated Results

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Net sales $114564 $ 95,648 $ 358,055 $ 337,361
Net income (loss) attributable to Cavco
common stockholders 1,945 (1,698) 3,648 8,516
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to
Cavco common stockholders 0.28 (0.26) 0.53 1.24
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The unaudited pro forma consolidated results wegpgred using the acquisition method of accounting
and are based on the historical financial inforomatif Cavco and Palm Harbor, reflecting both Caatcd
Palm Harbor results of operations for the threerdnd months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The historical financial informatibas been adjusted to give effect to the pro forueants that
are: (i) directly attributable to the acquisitidii) factually supportable; and (iii) expected tave a continuing
impact on the combined results. The unauditedgroa consolidated results are not necessarilycatilie of
what our consolidated results of operations actwediuld have been had we completed the acquisition
April 1, 2010. In addition, the unaudited pro farconsolidated results do not purport to projeetfthure
results of operations of the combined company wdhdy reflect the expected realization of any sasings
associated with the acquisition, including the etation of overhead costs. The results refleanprily the
following pro forma pre-tax adjustments:

» Reclassification of amounts to conform to Cascaccounting policies resulted in no impact to net
income/(loss). Classification of income statemenbants were not impacted for the three months
ended December 31, 2011. For the nine months ebdeember 31, 2011, net sales were grossed up by
$1.2 million, cost of sales were grossed up by #dillon, SG&A decreased by $428,000, interest
expense increased by $44,000, and other incomeatamt by $445,000. For the nine months ended
December 31, 2010, net sales were grossed up b§ $iidion, cost of sales were grossed up by $13.6
million, SG&A decreased by $1.8 million, interegpense increased by $484,000, and other income
decreased by $2.4 million.

» Reclassification of amounts to conform to Casgcaccounting policies for revenue recognition i th
retail sales process, resulting in the reclassiiosof net sales and cost of sales among peridtisse
revenue recognition adjustments resulted in deeseafnet sales and cost of sales of $203,000 and
$166,000 for the nine months ended December 31, 80d increases of $8.6 million and $6.2 million
of net sales and cost of sales for the nine mogded December 31, 2010, net of adjustments for
amounts deferred under Cavco’s revenue recogrptidiny.

« Elimination of Palm Harbor’s historical interestpense related to Senior Convertible Notes digelita
in bankruptcy, a note payable settled prior tolthekruptcy and a credit agreement that has been
terminated and will not be a part of the Comparmgpitalization going forward. ($239,000 and $6.3
million in the nine months ended December 31, 281d 2010, respectively).

» Elimination of $1.9 million of costs incurredc$187,000 of interest income in the nine monttdedn
December 31, 2011. These are directly attributibtbe bankruptcy and subsequent acquisition, and
which do not have a continuing impact on the comthicompany’s operating results. Included in these
costs are advisory, legal and regulatory costsriadiby both legacy Cavco and legacy Palm Harbor
and income and costs related to the debtor-in-gsgsefinancing that has been terminated.

» Additional amortization expense (approximatelyl $,000 and $2.3 million for the nine months ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively) relatdidet fair value of identifiable intangible assets
acquired.

* Reduction in depreciation expense (approxime&B8,000 and $1.5 million for the nine months ehde
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively) relatdiet fair value adjustment to property, plant and
equipment acquired.

» Elimination of operating activities related toged manufacturing facilities and retail locatidinat (i)
were not purchased in the transaction or (ii) e For sale as of the Date of Acquisition. Theoamts
eliminated included sales of $645,000 and $25.0anjlcost of sales of $1.3 million and $23.5 noitlj
and SG&A of $558,000 and $8.4 million for the nmmenths ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

» In addition, all of the above adjustments watisied for the applicable tax impact.

31



22. Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest

Redeemable Noncontrolling IntereBuring fiscal year 2010, the Company and an indest partner,
Third Avenue formed Fleetwood Homes, Inc., withirtial contribution of $35.0 million each for eduity-
percent ownership interests. On July 21, 2009 twieed Homes entered into an asset purchase agreemen
with Fleetwood Enterprises, Inc. and certain obitbsidiaries to purchase certain assets anditie®iof its
manufactured housing business.

The Company and Third Avenue subsequently congiban additional $36.0 million each in anticipation
of the purchase of Palm Harbor, which was compldtethg the first quarter of fiscal year 2012. Skxes
21 and 23 for further information.

The results of the Fleetwood Homes and Palm Haoperations have been included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the related Notes sirceetipective acquisition dates in accordance Wwigh t
provisions of ASC 810. Management has determinat] ttnder GAAP, although Fleetwood Homes is only
fifty-percent owned by the Company, Cavco has drotlimg interest and is required to fully consaltd the
results of Fleetwood Homes. The primary factors ¢tloatributed to this determination were Cavco’aroo
and management control of Fleetwood Homes. Toethdt members of Cavco’s management hold all of the
seats on the board of directors of Fleetwood Hoineaddition, as part of a management servicesagzat
among Cavco, Fleetwood Homes and Third Avenue, €pravides all executive-level management services
to Fleetwood Homes including, among other thingsiegal management oversight, marketing and customer
relations, accounting and cash management. Thiehde's financial interest in Fleetwood Homes is
considered a “redeemable noncontrolling interestd is designated as such in the Consolidated €iadan
Statements.

Temporary Equity ClassificatiodSC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equityincludes guidance
regarding the classification and measurement aarthble securities, including a requirement thaitgq
instruments that are not required to be classidietabilities be classified as temporary equitgl antside of
permanent equity if they are redeemable (i) axedfior determinable price on a fixed or determiealate, (ii)
at the option of the holder, or (iii) upon the ogemce of an event that is not solely within thatool of the
issuer.

In accordance with the Shareholder Agreement ethiate among Fleetwood Homes and its shareholders
(Cavco and Third Avenue), as amended on Novemhe2(BID (the “Shareholder Agreement”), after thifif
anniversary of the Fleetwood Acquisition Date,. @fer August 17, 2014), or at any time after Feod
Homes has earned net income of at least $10.Comili each of its two most recently completed contee
fiscal years, Third Avenue has the right (“Put Riyjko require Cavco to purchase all of Third Aversi
shares of Fleetwood Homes common stock for an ahfzased upon a calculation that is designed to
approximate fair value. Likewise, Cavco has thatri{Call Right”) to require Third Avenue to sell af its
shares of Fleetwood Homes common stock based @athe timing and calculation as described above for
the Put Right. The conditions for the Put RighCaill Right to become exercisable have not beerasef
December 31, 2011.
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The purchase price to be payable by Cavco for tinehase of Third Avenue’s shares pursuant to the
exercise of the Put Right or the Call Right maysbttled in cash or shares of common stock of Cavco.
However, the circumstances under which net shdtlesent would be allowed are not solely within the
control of Cavco. The availability of net shardlestent is dependent upon a number of factorsekample,
at the time of such purchase, Cavco’s common stagkt be listed on either the NASDAQ or the New York
Stock Exchange. In the case of Third Avenue’s @gerof its Put Right, Cavco may elect to pay akhor
portion of such purchase price in the form of shafecommon stock of Cavco. In the case of Cavco’s
exercise of its Call Right, Third Avenue may elexcteceive all or a portion of such purchase piricthe form
of shares of common stock of Cavco. In addition,share settlement would not be available if itevier lead
to a change of control of Cavco. If either Cavcd bird Avenue makes such election, the shares vE€a
common stock to be issued to Third Avenue woulddleed based on the average closing price of Cavco’
common stock for the sixty most recent trading dayere is no explicit cap on the maximum number of
common shares that could be potentially issuabd® updemption; therefore, Third Avenue’s noncofitigl
interest in Fleetwood Homes is classified as a tsamy equity mezzanine item between liabilities and
stockholders’ equity.

The carrying amount is subject to adjustment, afteibution of net income or loss of Fleetwood Hamn
if there are changes in the redemption value agtiakof the reporting period. For the period sithee
Fleetwood Acquisition Date through December 31,12@e Company determined that the potential
redemption value of the redeemable noncontrolimegrest did not exceed its carrying value and rjosatient
was needed.

23. Convertible Note Payable

On December 1, 2010, the Company and Third Aventered into separate convertible note payable
agreements with their subsidiary, Fleetwood Horfuers$14.0 million each, convertible to 200 shares o
Fleetwood Homes, Inc. common stock at the sucdedsfe of the contemplated Palm Harbor transaction
The convertible notes were subsequently increag&2.0 million each, convertible to an additioB&#.28
shares, for a total of $36.0 million per note ia thurth quarter of fiscal 2011, convertible to Bishares.
The convertible notes bore interest of 2.5% peuannConcurrent with the successful completiorhef t
acquisition of Palm Harbor, all outstanding conisetnotes were converted to shares of Fleetwoaué$o
Inc. on April 23, 2011 and redeemable noncontrgliimterest increased by $36.0 million. Any righiriterest
income was forfeited by the note holders upon cmsier in accordance with the terms of the agreesient

24. Related Party Transactions

At December 31, 2011, Third Avenue Management Lie@dficially owned approximately 12.1% of
Cavco Industries, Inc. outstanding common shardgtars meets the definition of a principal ownedem
FASB ASC 850Related Party DisclosurdSASC 8507). Third Avenue Management LLC and Thikdenue
are either directly or indirectly under common eohtThird Avenue’s participation in ownership of
Fleetwood Homes, the Fleetwood Homes transactmmyertible note payable, and the subsequent Palm
Harbor acquisition are therefore considered relptety transactions in accordance with ASC 850.
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25. Business Segment Information

The Company operates principally in two segmenistactory-built housing, which includes
manufactured housing, modular housing and retaitatfpns and (2) financial services, which includes
finance and insurance. The following table detadssales and income before income taxes by sediment

thousands):

Net sales:
Factory-built housing
Financial services

Income before income taxes:
Factory-built housing
Financial services
General corporate charges
Gain on bargain purchase

Total assets:
Factory-built housing
Financial services
Corporate

Three Months Ended
December 31,

Nine Months Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2011

2010

$ 104931 $ 39612 $ 317,457 $ 133,005

9,633 - 26,096

$ 114564 $ 39,612 $ 343553 $ 133,005

$ 5115 $ 1,786 $ 7693 $ 7,250
2,002 - 5,642 -
(2,333) (1,207) (5,503) (3,330)
- - 22,009 -
$ 4784 % 579 $ 29,841 $ 3,920
As of
December 31, March 31,
2011 2011

$ 227,031 $ 192,866
165,542 -
35,430 76,576

$ 428,003 $ 269,442
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of f@ncial Condition and Results of Operations
Introduction

The following should be read in conjunction witle tBompany’s Consolidated Financial Statements and
the related Notes that appear in Item 1 of thisdReReferences to “Note” or “Notes” refer to tNetes to
the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview

Headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona, the Companygdsesind produces factory-built housing products
primarily distributed through a network of independand company-owned retailers. We are the second
largest producer of HUD code manufactured homéiserUnited States, based on reported wholesale
shipments, and marketed under a variety of brantesancluding Cavco Homes, Fleetwood Homes, Palm
Harbor Homes and Nationwide Homes. The Companls@saleading producer of park model homes,
vacation cabins, modular homes, and systems-tantintercial living structures. Our mortgage subsidia
CountryPlace, is an approved Fannie Mae and GMaie seller/servicer and offers conforming mortgages
purchasers of factory-built and site-built homesr @surance subsidiary, Standard, provides prygzart
casualty insurance to manufactured home owners.

Company Growth

On June 30, 2003, Cavco became a stand-alone fyuinticl company after previously operating as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Centex Corporation. &zl manufactured home factory and retail operation
were historically located in and primarily servae Southwest and South Central United States hgusin
markets.

On August 17, 2009, the Company and an investrreathgr, Third Avenue Value Fund (“Third
Avenue”), acquired certain manufactured housingtasand liabilities of Fleetwood Enterprises, lincough
their jointly owned corporation, Fleetwood Homex;.I(“Fleetwood Homes"), pursuant to an auctiorcpss
under Section 363 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Tbmpany and Third Avenue each own 50% of
Fleetwood Homes. Third Avenue Management is ansitnvent advisor to Third Avenue Value Fund and is a
principal stockholder of the Company, as describetther in Notes 22 and 24.

On November 29, 2010, Fleetwood Homes, throughtitslly-owned subsidiary, Palm Harbor Homes,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Palm Harbor” or ‘laHarbor Delaware”), entered into an agreement (the
“Purchase Agreement”) with Palm Harbor Homes, lad=)orida corporation and certain of its subsidir
(“Seller”) to purchase substantially all of theetssand assume specified liabilities of Sellerspant to an
auction process under Section 363 of the U.S. Bgm&y Code. On April 23, 2011 (the “Acquisition 83,
Palm Harbor completed the purchase of Seller'stass®l the assumption of specified liabilities,eptdor
Palm Harbor’s acquisition of the stock of Standaesualty Co. (“Standard”), pursuant to the Amenaied
Restated Asset Purchase Agreement dated Marcii 1, Zthe aggregate gross purchase price was $83.9
million and is exclusive of transaction costs, $fed liabilities assumed and post-closing adjusitagthese
adjustments have been recorded). Of the purchass (i) approximately $45.3 million was used ttireea
debtor-in-possession loan previously made by FleetiiHomes to Seller; and (ii) $13.4 million was osiped
in escrow pending regulatory approval to trandferdtock of Standard to Palm Harbor. The purchese p
was funded by Fleetwood Homes’ cash on hand aldthlgegual contributions from the Company and Third
Avenue. On June 7, 2011, regulatory approval eftguisition of Standard was received from theafex
Department of Insurance and on June 10, 2011, Raktnor completed the purchase of Standard. SeesNot
21 and 22 for further information.

Financial information for Fleetwood Homes is inaddn the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes. The Company and Aki&nue have each contributed $71.0 million in
exchange for equal ownership interests in Fleetwdoahes. Although the Company holds a fifty-percent
financial interest in Fleetwood Homes, its resafteperations are required to be fully consolidatétiird
Avenue'’s financial interest in Fleetwood Homesagasidered a “redeemable noncontrolling interestd i
designated as such in the Consolidated Financati®ents (see Notes 1 and 22).
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The Palm Harbor transaction included five operatranufactured housing production facilities, idled
factories in nine locations, 49 operating retagidtions, one office building, real estate, all tedbequipment,
accounts receivable, customer deposits, inventenyain trademarks and trade names, intellectuggsty,
specified contracts and leases, and certain liedsilincluding debt facilities of CountryPlace ($¢mte 21).
Palm Harbor purchased all of the outstanding shafr€ountryPlace Acceptance Corp. with its whollyred
finance subsidiaries (collectively, “CountryPlacaf)d all of the outstanding shares of StandardthiiePalm
Harbor nor the Company incurred any debt in conoeatith the transaction, other than the assumed
CountryPlace debt facilities.

The transaction further expanded the Company’s iggiic reach at a national level by adding factorie
and retail locations serving the Northwest, Southt€al, Southeast and Mid-Atlantic regions. The @any
believes it will have the opportunity to achievetam synergies and cost reductions by eliminatedyndant
processes and overhead.

Palm Harbor’s brand recognition is accompanieddyeputation for producing high quality productsw
exceptional service after the sale. Strategictily,Palm Harbor transaction strengthens the Con'pany
position in Texas and surrounding states, whichttzaitionally been among the strongest regiongemhand
for manufactured housing. We also gained a direztgnce in Florida, another historically large reafkr
our industry, which we had not been able to seregipusly. Nationwide Homes, a Palm Harbor braaseol
in Virginia, builds an innovative and creative liaklarger single and multi-story modular homesstorcted
to conform to state and local building codes. Natime Homes sells to local developers and developme
projects as well as individuals. Palm Harbor utdizinique marketing capabilities including interswad other
methods that may be expanded to other areas &fahgpany.

The purchase of the Palm Harbor assets also pothdeCompany entry into financial and insurance
businesses specific to our industry. Standardnsicited in Texas and is primarily a specialty writé
manufactured home physical damage insurance. Sthhd&ds insurance licenses in multiple states;éwas;
a significant portion of its writings occurs in Taex In addition to writing direct policies, Standlaissumes
and cedes reinsurance in the ordinary course ofiéss (see Note 12).

CountryPlace originates and services factory-thglising mortgage loans in connection with the etai
sale of homes built and sold by the Company andrstiThe loans are secured by the underlying homes.
CountryPlace services, for itself and others, confiog mortgages, non-conforming land-home mortgaapes
manufactured home chattel loans. CountryPlacetisaaed by the U.S. Department of Housing and brba
Development (“HUD”) to directly endorse Federal ldimg Administration (“FHA”) Title | and Title Il
mortgage insurance, is approved by the Governmatiohbl Mortgage Association (“GNMA” or “Ginnie
Mae”) to issue GNMA-insured mortgage-backed sei@s;itand is authorized to sell mortgages to, andcee
mortgages for, the Federal National Mortgage Asgami (“FNMA” or “Fannie Mae”).

We are in the process of expanding our productioffe throughout the combined organization by stuari
product designs, production methods and marketnagegiies. The supportive response by our custbames
to the Palm Harbor and Fleetwood Homes acquisiti@ssbeen encouraging. We expect to realize some
operating efficiency improvements as a result aflatger size and buying power although for a pkdb
time, transaction costs and transition related esge will mask a portion of such savings. We piaplace a
consistent focus on developing synergies amongpaltations. Overall, we believe that these exjpassand
improvements will be positive long-term strateganéfits for the Company.

Including the factories listed above, during thamer ended December 31, 2011, the Company operated
fifteen homebuilding facilities located in Phoenijzona; Goodyear, Arizona; Nampa, Idaho; Woodburn
Oregon; Millersburg, Oregon; Riverside, CaliforriWdaco, Texas; Austin, Texas; Seguin, Texas; Fonthyo
Texas; Lafayette, Tennessee; Douglas, Georgia;iaitie, Virginia; Rocky Mount, Virginia and Plaity,
Florida. During the quarter ended December 31128t Company sold idled production facilitiesBinda,
Texas for $1.3 million and in Casa Grande, Ariztoreh1.3 million resulting in net gains of $9,000da
$14,000, respectively. Subsequent to Decembe2@®ll,, the Company entered into an agreement tausell
idled manufacturing facility located in Phoenix,jZma.
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Cash and cash equivalents of the Company totaleamately $35.4 million on December 31, 2011.
We believe this level of capitalization should gdevsufficient resources to the operations of tbenGany to
endure continuing depressed market conditions @aedtablish a solid base for continued growth as
circumstances improve.

Industry and Company Outlook

The manufactured housing industry and the Compantirtwe to operate at low production and shipment
levels. According to data provided by the Manuieetl Housing Institute (“MHI”), our industry shipge
approximately 48,000 HUD code manufactured honmas ffanuary through November 2011 compared to
47,000 for the same period last year. In cale@8a0 and 2009, our industry shipped approximaté|@@0
HUD code manufactured homes annually, the lowestidesince shipment statistics began to be recdrded
1959. This followed approximately 82,000 homegphd in calendar year 2008, which was the prewimas
Yearly home shipments from 2003 to 2009 were lleas the annual home shipments for each of the dye
from 1963 to 2002. For the past 10- and 20-yedog@se, annual home shipments averaged 117,000 and
207,000, respectively.

General economic challenges including low conswafidence levels, unemployment and
underemployment, constricted mortgage lending,aedall housing sector weakness need to improepuio
annual industry and Company shipment levels. Lomsamer confidence in the U.S. economy is not
conducive for potential customers to commit to enegurchase. In addition, sales of our homes haea
negatively affected by high unemployment rateswamtkremployment. Consumer financing for the retalil
purchase of manufactured homes needs to becomeavaitable before marked emergence from currens low
can occur. Restrictive underwriting guidelinesgdgular appraisal processes, higher interest catepared to
site-built homes, regulatory burdens, reductionth@number of institutions lending to manufactuneche
buyers and limited secondary market availabilityrfanufactured home loans are significant ressamt
industry growth. We are working directly and thgbundustry trade associations to encourage fal@rab
legislative and government-sponsored enterprigeratti address the mortgage financing needs ohgiate
buyers of affordable homes. Although limited pexg has been made in this area, a meaningfulymositi
impact in the form of increased home orders atfactories has yet to be realized.

Competition from excess site-built home invent@ram issue that is also of concern. Surplus homes
creating the oversupply have various sources. &eimgentories of repossessed site-built homes are
significant and liquidation selling prices are oftewer than the current cost to build a similamo It has
been reported that some on-site home buildersfgeng incentives to homebuyers in order to be petitive
with lender foreclosure pricing in their sales ar€he resultant price points are low enough inyrases to
compete with manufactured housing. In turn, coimgananufactured home providers are aggressively
pricing their products in efforts to obtain a portiof the contracted overall housing market. Lol@ne
prices, restrictive underwriting guidelines, anokskales activity have also had an adverse impathe
contingency contract process, wherein potentialufsrtured home buyers must sell their existing home
order to facilitate the purchase of a new factarijtthome.

The Company operated with low backlogs during kel tquarter of fiscal year 2012. The backlog of
sales orders at December 31, 2011 varied amonfifi@en factories, but in total was $10.9 milliaor,
approximately two weeks of current production lsvel

Inventory financing for the industry’s retail ditntion chain continues to be in short supply. deéhwith
illiquid capital markets in late calendar year 2088ch of the manufactured housing sector’'s remgini
inventory finance lenders initiated significant ngas, including one company’s announcement to cease
lending activities in this industry entirely. Thevolvement of others is subject to more restrictigrms that
continue to evolve. As most retailers requireriitiag to maintain inventories of homes, the Company
partnered with several lenders to help providetipe of inventory financing. In connection witbrtain of
these participation inventory finance programs,Goenpany provides a significant amount of the fuhds
independent financiers lend to distributors tofficeretail inventories of our products. In additithe
Company has entered into direct inventory finarrca@rgements with distributors of our products whetkee
Company provides all of the inventory finance fufsle Note 6). The Company’s participation in irteey
finance has increased the availability of manufactihome inventory financing to distributors of our
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products. We believe that our expanding involvehiie wholesale inventory financing is quite helgfu
distributors and provides our product continuedosxipe to potential homebuyers while we endure ggen
competitive forces from other manufactured homelau. These initiatives support the Company’s orgo
efforts to expand our distribution base in all of sarkets with existing and new customers.

The two largest manufactured housing consumer deapbg@s, young adults and those who are 55+ years
old, are both growing. Household formation israatied to increase as the young adult populaties mdth
the growth in the 25 to 34-year-old age brackanhetimes referred to as the echo-boom generatihis T
group is attracted by the affordability, diversitfystyle choices and flexibility as to the locatioitheir home.
The age 55 and older category is reported to béagtest growing segment of the U.S. populatiohis §roup
is similarly interested in the value propositioowever, they are also motivated by the low mainteaa
requirements of factory built homes, and by theslifle offered by planned communities that areifipalty
designed for manufactured-home owners in this agepg

The national rental vacancy rate has been reptotbd low. Rental housing competes directly witdmngm
of our product offerings, and reductions in remahilability and increases in the cost of rentirmyrhave the
effect of shifting interested buyers to other hngsalternatives including manufactured homes.

With manufacturing facilities strategically positied across the nation, we utilize local marketaegeto
design homes to meet the demands of our custoliverfiave the ability to customize floor plans ansigies
to fulfill specific needs. By offering a full rangd homes from entry level models to large custamés and
with the ability to engineer designs in-house, wa accommodate virtually any customer requestddfitian
to homes built to the Federal HUD code, we constmadular homes which conform to state and locdksop
park models and cabins, and light commercial bagdiat many of our manufacturing facilities.

Company-wide, we have intensified our efforts tenitify niche market opportunities where our diverse
product lines and custom building capabilities jdevour company with a competitive advantage. Gree
construction processes and environmentally-friebdijding materials have long been a part of oun&o
building process and their popularity is expectedrow. We utilize building materials that, comhinegith
our building process, we believe give us a greemidige over other home builders. Many of the homes
build meet Energy Star standards. Building grdsa significantly reduces greenhouse gas emissigthsut
sacrificing features, style or comfort. From bamifilooring and tankless water heaters to solar-pede
homes, our products are diverse and tailored taa range of consumer interests. Innovation insiray
design is a forte of the Company and we continurttoduce new models at competitive price poinithw
expressive interiors and exteriors that complerhente styles in the areas in which they are located.

Prospects are good for the systems-built housidigsimy, as it provides enhanced quality homes with
better coordination of labor and well-controlledteral usage resulting in lower cost to the consyme
compared to on-site construction methods. Our Gaompas a demonstrated ability to operate effdgtimed
efficiently at low levels of capacity utilizatioraracteristic of the industry currently. In addlitj the
Company has worked diligently to maintain a sailiéifcial position. Our balance sheet strength Ishioelp
us to avoid the liquidity problems faced by manyestcompanies and enable us to act effectivelyaken
opportunities present themselves.

We were named the “2011 Manufacturer of the YegrtMbll, the factory-built home industry’s national
trade organization, for the second consecutive. yaaddition, both Cavco and Palm Harbor recesederal
design awards from MHI. These honors are a réfleatf our valued employees, customers and veratmis
we appreciate the recognition.

In January 2008, we announced a stock repurchagegon. A total of $10 million may be used to
repurchase our outstanding common stock. The cepaes may be made in the open market or in piyvate
negotiated transactions in compliance with appleabate and federal securities laws and othef lega
requirements. The level of repurchase activisuilsject to market conditions and other investment
opportunities. The plan does not obligate us tameqny particular amount of common stock and by
suspended or discontinued at any time. The repgecprogram will be funded using our available cddb
repurchases have been made under this progranteto da
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Regulatory Developments

The American Housing Rescue and Foreclosure PrieveAtt was enacted in 2008 to provide assistance
by way of legislation for the housing industry, liding the manufactured housing industry. Amongeoth
things, the act provides for increased loan lifotschattel (home-only Title I) loans to $69,67®, 48% from
the previous limit of $48,600 set in 1992. New é&mdl Housing Administration (FHA) Title | program
guidelines became effective on June 1, 2010. @e 10, 2010, the Government National Mortgage
Association (Ginnie Mae) began accepting applicatioy lenders for participation as issuers of naméy
backed securities backed by Title | loans origidatader the new program. Ginnie Mae releasedeelat
pooling guidelines in November 2010. The issuafdbese guidelines provides Ginnie Mae the abibity
securitize manufactured home FHA Title | loans.isMall allow lenders to obtain new capital, whican then
be used to fund new loans for our customers. €Hatins have languished in recent years and tieseges
are meant to broaden opportunities for prospettbraeowners. However, a meaningful positive imfract
the form of increased home orders at our factdréesyet to be realized.

Results of Operations
Three and nine months ended December 31, 2011 compared to 2010

Net Sales.Total net sales increased 189.2% to $114.6 mifiiorthe three months ended December 31,
2011 compared to $39.6 million for the comparahlarter last year. For the nine months ended Deeemb
31, 2011, sales increased 158.3% to $343.6 millimm $133.0 million for the same period last yéldre
Palm Harbor operations were acquired on April ZB,12 and from that date forward are included inrdsailts
of fiscal year 2012.

Factory-built housing net sales increased 164.9%4.62.9 million from $39.6 million for the compatab
quarter last year. For the nine months ended DieeeBil, 2011, factory-built housing net sales iasesl
138.7% to $317.5 million from $133.0 million foretlsame period last year. The financial servicemeat
consisting of CountryPlace and Standard, contrib&&6 million and $26.1 million in net sales fbetthree
and nine months ended December 31, 2011, respigctive

Gross Profit. Gross profit as a percent of sales increased &%28or the three months ended December
31, 2011 from 13.5% for the same period last yadriacreased to 20.8% for the nine months ended
December 31, 2011 from 14.3% last year. IncludirgPalm Harbor operations, the Company’s combined
factory-built housing operations sold 1,972 and’8,Bomes during the three and nine months ended
December 31, 2011, respectively, compared to 1ah893,691 homes during the comparable periodyédast
While the average sales price per home improvedintiprovement in gross profit was mainly the resfithe
added Palm Harbor retail business, and the finanddansurance subsidiaries, which are generallydrig
margin businesses.

Selling, General and Administrative Expens8glling, general and administrative expensesaszd
289.3% or $15.3 million to $20.5 million, or 17.98bnet sales, for the three months ended Decenther 3
2011 versus $5.3 million or 13.3% of net salestliersame period last year. For the nine-montlogended
December 31, 2011, selling, general and adminigtraixpenses increased 269.5% or $43.1 milliorbth 1
million from $16.0 million last year. The increaserimarily a result of the addition of the PalrarHor
businesses. Costs related to the acquisition lafi Parbor Florida were $1,000 and $865,000 forttiree
and nine months ended December 31, 2011, resplgctivel were expensed as incurred.

Income Before Income TaxeBre-tax income increased to $4.8 million for theeéhmonths ended
December 31, 2011 compared to $579,000 for the acatbfe quarter last year. Included in income leefor
income taxes for the three months ended Decemh&031l were $5.1 million from the factory-built reing
segment and $2.0 million from the financial sergisegment, offset by $2.3 million of general cogper
charges. Income before income taxes for the tim@eths ended December 31, 2010 was $579,000, inglud
$1.8 million of factory-built housing income, offsa part by $1.2 million of general corporate aes. For
the nine months ended December 31, 2011, inconméfcome taxes of $29.8 million consisted of $7.7
million from the factory-built housing segment, &®nillion from the financial services segment, $iflion
of general corporate charges, and $22.0 milliogadh on bargain purchase (see Note 21). This coedda
factory-built housing income for the nine monthslesh December 31, 2010 of $7.3 million, offset byeayal
corporate charges of $3.3 million resulting in parincome of $3.9 million.
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Interest Expenselnterest expense of $2.0 million and $5.4 millfonthe three and nine months ended
December 31, 2011, respectively, consisted of sievice on securitization financings connectedhéo t
CountryPlace Mortgage securitized manufactured hioare portfolios.

Other Income.Other income primarily represents interest incoam@ed on inventory finance notes
receivable and debtor-in-possession note receivabteer income decreased 13.9% to $440,000 fathtlee
months ended December 31, 2011 as compared todd®Lduring the prior year period. For the nine then
ended December 31, 2011, other income increas@&alér. $98,000 to $1.1 million from $957,000 lasaye

Income TaxesFor the three-month periods ended December 311, 26d 2010, the effective income tax
rate was approximately 38% and 50%, respectivalytie nine-month periods ended December 31, 206d1 a
2010, the effective income tax rate was approxiindi@% and 40%, respectively. The gain on bargain
purchase was not taxable, causing a variationdrctistomary relationship between income beforenmeco
taxes and income tax expense for the nine monibgended December 31, 2011.

Net Income.Net income attributable to Cavco stockholdergtierthree and nine months ended December
31, 2011 was $1.7 million and $13.6 million, respety, compared to $24,000 and $1.2 million foe th
comparable quarter and nine-month period last yeapectively. Net income attributable to Cavco
stockholders for the nine months ended Decembe2(@®lL], includes one half of the $22.0 million bangai
purchase gain recognized resulting from the Palnbétaransaction, consistent with Cavco’s ownership
percentage of Fleetwood Homes.

See Note 21 for further discussion of the Palm Batansaction.
Liquidity and Capital Resources (Dollars in thousamls)

We believe that cash and cash equivalents at Deare®dl 2011, together with cash flow from operation
will be sufficient to fund our operations and pmbifor growth for the next twelve months and irite t
foreseeable future. Because of the Company’s $erfiicash position, the Company has not soughtreaite
sources of liquidity, such as a credit facilitywever, depending on our operating results andegfiat
opportunities, we may need to seek additional teréditive sources of financing. There can be norasse
that such financing would be available on satisfigcterms, if at all. If this financing were notaable, it
could be necessary for us to reevaluate our lomg-tgerating plans to make more efficient use of ou
existing capital resources. The exact nature ofclsaynges to our plans that would be consideredndispen
various factors, such as conditions in the factauijt housing industry and general economic coadgi
outside of our control.

Projected cash to be provided by or used in oaraiin the coming year is largely dependent orssale
volume. Operating activities provided $8.7 milliohcash during the nine months ended December(1l,,2
compared to requiring the use of $2.3 million dgrine same period last year. Cash provided by tipgra
activities during the current period was primathy result of cash generated by the new financsidiales,
including proceeds from sales of consumer loanscatidcting principal payments on consumer loans
originated, as well as operating income before cash charges. These increases were supplemented by
increases of accounts payable and accrued ligkilitiffset in part by the volume of consumer loanginated
and increases in inventory finance receivablegpgideassets and accounts receivable. Cash ussukbgting
activities during the nine months ended DecembeRB10 was primarily the result of net funding of
inventory finance initiatives and decreases in ant®payable, offset in part by operating inconmf@teenon-
cash charges and collections of trade receivables.

Investing activities required the use of $25.3imillof cash during the nine months ended December 3
2011, compared to the use of $39.0 million of ahsting the same period last year. Cash used bygiimee
activities in the current period was primarily fands to complete the acquisition of the assetsassdmption
of specified liabilities of Palm Harbor Homes, lnnder the asset purchase agreement and debtor-in-
possession credit facility, as discussed in Nofeartl 21, and capital expenditures in all of owerapons,
offset in part by proceeds from the sale of thdbe facilities acquired in the Palm Harbor trangact Cash
used by investing activities in the prior year pdrivas primarily for funds provided to Palm HarBtorida
under the debtor-in-possession credit facilitydiasussed in Note 20.
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Financing activities required the use of $24.5ioillin cash during the nine months ended December 3
2011, consisting of $19.5 million used to retireeatain debt obligation of the Company’s new subsyd
CountryPlace Acceptance Corp., on May 10, 2011 Kkete 21), offset in part by $1.5 million from the
issuance of common stock under our stock incemtiaes. Financing activities provided $15.4 millioncash
during the nine months ended December 31, 201Gjstorg of $14.0 million from the issuance of a
convertible note payable to Third Avenue, whichdsah redeemable noncontrolling interest in Fleetivoo
Homes (see Note 22), and $1.4 million from theasse of stock under our stock incentive plans.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual gdttions at December 31, 2011, consisting of future
payments under securitized financings and non-dablecoperating lease agreements. For additional
information related to these obligations, see Nateand 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statemdihis
table excludes long-term obligations for which thiexrno definite commitment period.

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1-3 3-5 After 5
Total 1 year Years Years Years
(In thousands)

Debt obligations:
Securitized financing 2005-1 (1) (2) $ 60,813% 7,807 $ 13,447 $ 11,013 $ 28,546

Securitized financing 2007-1 (1) (2) 60,497 8,663 13,966 11,001 26,867

Construction lending lines (1) 5,599 5,599 - - -
Commitments for future payments under

noncancelable operating leases 9,941 4,085 4,680 1,172 4
Total contractual obligations $ 136,850 $ 26,154 $ 32,093 $ 23,186 $ 55,417

@ Interest is calculated by applying contractualriesé rates to month-end balances.
@ The timing of these estimated payments fluctuassed upon various factors, including loan portfolio
prepayment and default rates.

The following table summarizes our contingent cotmments at December 31, 2011, consisting of
contingent repurchase obligations, letters of ¢radd remaining construction contingent commitmeisr
additional information related to these contingaligations, see Note 14 to the Consolidated Fiahnc
Statements.

Contingent Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 3-5 After 5
Total 1 year Years Years Years
(In thousands)
Repurchase obligations (1) $ 11,474% 9,780 $ 1694 $ - $ -
Letters of credit (2) 7,200 7,200 - - -
Construction contingent commitment (3) 3,754 3,754 - - -
Total contractual obligations $ 22,428 $ 20,734 $ 1694 $ - $ -

@ For a complete description of the contingent repase obligation, see "Critical Accounting Policies

Reserve for Repurchase Commitments" in the Comgdatest annual report. Although the
commitments outstanding at December 31, 2011 héinitealife, these commitments are continually
replaced as we continue to sell manufactured hame=ailers under repurchase and other recourse
agreements with lending institutions which havevigted wholesale floor plan financing to retailers.
@ While the current letters of credit have finitedsy they are subject to renewal based on their
underlying requirements.
®  The total loan contract amount, less cumulativeaades, represents an off-balance sheet contingent
commitment of CountryPlace to fund future advances.
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Critical Accounting Policies

In Part Il, Item 7 of our Form 10-K, under the hiegd Critical Accounting Policies”, we have providi@
discussion of the critical accounting policies titgnagement believes affect its more significatgoents
and estimates used in the preparation of our Cimtadet! Financial Statements. In addition, refeth&®
following accounting policies.

Accretable Yield on Consumer Loans Receivable andr8ized FinancingsThe Company acquired
consumer loans receivable and securitized finagaituging the first quarter of fiscal 2012 as a pathe
Palm Harbor transaction. Acquired consumer loansivable held for investment and securitized fonagys
were acquired at fair value, which resulted inscdunt, and subsequently are accounted for a mamiar
to ASC 310-30 to accrete the discount.

The Company considers expected prepayments amoa¢ass the amount and timing of undiscounted
expected principal, interest and other cash flawsbnsumer loans receivable held for investment to
determine the expected cash flows on securitizezh@iings and the contractual payments. The anadunt
contractual principal and contractual interest pagts due on the securitized financings in excesdl ochsh
flows expected as of the Acquisition Date canncad@eted into interest expense (the non-accretable
difference). The remaining amount is accreted imterest expense over the remaining life of thiggakion
(referred to as accretable yield).

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standahadate (“ASU”) 2010-20Receivables (Topic 310):
Disclosures about the Credit Quality of FinancingcRivables and the Allowance for Credit Lossésch
requires entities to provide new disclosures iir thi@ancial statements about their financing reaéles,
including credit risk exposures and the allowarmrecfedit losses on a disaggregated basis. In 2pdill, the
FASB issued ASU 2011-02, Creditor's Determination of Whether a Restruatgris a Troubled Debt
Restructuring ASU 2011-02 clarifies when creditors should digdsan modifications as troubled debt
restructurings. In addition, ASU 2011-02 deferteel éffective date of the disclosures about troubkut
restructurings in ASU 2010-20 to periods beginraftgr June 15, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, the
Company has adopted all of the aforementioned piavé of ASU 2010-20 and ASU 2011-02.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010R8%iness Combinations (Topic 805): Disclosure of
Supplementary Pro Forma Information for BusinessnBmations.The amendments in this update are
effective prospectively for business combinaticorsfhich the acquisition date is on or after thgibeing of
the first annual reporting period beginning onfeeraDecember 15, 2010. The amendments affected the
Company'’s disclosures of pro forma information sunding the Palm Harbor acquisition (see Note 21).

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-64jr Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and DisceRaquirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRBe
amendments are effective for public companiesrfarim and annual periods beginning after Decertiber
2011. This update changes the wording used toidesmiany of the requirements for measuring faineand
for disclosing information about fair value measneats. The amendments in this update result in cmmm
fair value measurement and disclosure requireme@MAP and International Financial Reporting Staut$
(“IFRS"). The Company is currently evaluating tHeeet ASU 2011-04 will have on the Company’s
disclosures in the Notes to Consolidated Finar&tialements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08mprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of
Comprehensive Incom&@he amendments in this update are effective tibtip companies for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginniftgrddecember 15, 2011. In this update, an ehtity the
option to present the total of comprehensive ingdiree components of net income, and the comporénts
other comprehensive income either in a single nootis statement of comprehensive income or in two
separate but consecutive statements. In both ach@oeentity is required to present each compaoofemt
income along with total net income, each componéonther comprehensive income along with a total fo
other comprehensive income, and a total amourtdomprehensive income. This update eliminates ttierop
to present the components of other comprehensbaeria as part of the statement of changes in stéadasd
equity. The Company is currently evaluating tife@fASU 2011-05 will have on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and disclosures.
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In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011t@i@ngibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing
Goodwill for Impairment. The amendments in this update are effective diblip companies for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2011. In this updategntity has the option to first assess qualiédtctors to
determine that it is more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgarg amount.

If, after assessing the totality of events or aginstances, an entity determines it is more likenthot that the
fair value of a reporting unit is less than itsrganrg amount, then it is required to perform thstfistep of the
two-step impairment test. However, if an entithcodes otherwise, then performing the two-stepaimmpent
test is unnecessary. Early adoption is permitflaie Company is currently evaluating the effect AZ111-08
will have on the Company’s Consolidated Financtak&nents and disclosures.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemergssaued by the FASB or the SEC that are adopted
by the Company as of the specified effective ddfedess otherwise discussed, management belieaethth
impact of recently issued standards, which areyabeffective, will not have a material impact te t
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements upoptamh.

Forward-looking Statements

Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncettagiand other factors, which may cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to be mdiediferent from those expressed or implied bylsuc
forward-looking statements. In addition to the R¥sictors described in Part |, Item 1Risk Factorsn our
Form 10-K, factors that could affect our resultd aause them to materially differ from those camdiin the
forward-looking statements include, but are noftkah to:

* We operate in an industry that is currently expegiieg a prolonged and significant downturn;

* Tightened credit standards and curtailed lendiniyiacby home-only lenders have contributed
to a constrained consumer financing market, whiely gontinue or could intensify;

* The availability of wholesale financing for industetailers is limited due to a reduced number
of floor plan lenders and reduced lending limits;

e Our operating results could be affected by marete’s and declining housing demand;

* We have incurred net losses in certain prior peranald there can be no assurance that we will
generate income in the future;

* A write-off of all or part of our goodwill could agrsely affect our operating results and net
worth;

* The cyclical and seasonal nature of the manufagtooeising industry causes our revenues and
operating results to fluctuate, and we expectdhddicality and seasonality to continue in the
future;

e Our liquidity and ability to raise capital may hmnited;

* We have contingent repurchase obligations relatedhblesale financing provided to industry
retailers;

* The manufactured housing industry is highly comjwetj and competition may increase the
adverse effects of industry conditions;

* If we are unable to establish or maintain relatigos with independent retailers who sell our
homes, our sales could decline;

e Our results of operations can be adversely affdayddbor shortages and the pricing and
availability of raw materials;
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* If the manufactured housing industry is not abledoure favorable local zoning ordinances, our
sales could decline and our business could be selyeaiffected;

e The loss of any of our executive officers couldusslour ability to execute our business stra
and could have a material adverse effect on ounbss and results of operations;

e Certain provisions of our organizational documemislid delay or make more difficult a change
in control of our Company;

* Volatility of stock price;

e Deterioration in economic conditions in general aodtinued turmoil in the credit markets
could reduce our earnings and financial condition;

* We may not be able to successfully integrate FleetihiHomes, Palm Harbor, and any future
acquisition or attain the anticipated benefitswaftsacquisition and the acquisition of Fleetwood
Homes, Palm Harbor and any future acquisition ntbaeesely impact the Company’s liquidity;

* Qur increasing participation in certain wholesatamcing programs for the purchase of our
products by industry retailers exposes us to amditirisk of credit loss, which could adversely
impact the Company’s liquidity and results of opierss; and

e Our expansion of retail and manufacturing busineasel entry into new lines of business,
namely manufactured housing consumer finance andance, through the Palm Harbor
transaction could expose the Company to additiosies.

We may make additional written or oral forward-loukstatements from time to time in filings witheth
SEC or in public news releases or statements. &ddhional statements may include, but are nottdichto,
projections of revenues, income or loss, capitpkeditures, acquisitions, plans for future operetjo
financing needs or plans, the impact of inflatiowl @lans relating to our products or services, @l ag
assumptions relating to the foregoing.

Statements in this Report on Form 10-Q, includimgse set forth in this section, may be considered
“forward looking statements” within the meaningSxction 21E of the Securities Act of 1934. These
forward-looking statements are often identifiediayrds such as “estimate,” “predict,” “hope,” “may,”
“believe,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “expect,” “requiré “intend,” “assume,” and similar words.

Forward-looking statements contained in this ReporEorm 10-Q speak only as of the date of thisntep
or, in the case of any document incorporated bgreefce, the date of that document. We do not intend
publicly update or revise any forward-looking stagat contained in this Report on Form 10-Q or ip an
document incorporated herein by reference to refleanged assumptions, the occurrence of unantécipa
events or changes to future operating results tver.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adwechanges in market prices and interest ratesméye
from time to time be exposed to interest rate inglerent in our financial instruments, but are currently
subject to foreign currency or commodity price riske manage our exposure to these market risksghr
our regular operating and financing activities.

Our operations are interest rate sensitive. Asadvmanufactured housing demand can be adversely
affected by increases in interest rates, a signifitncrease in wholesale or mortgage interess ratgy
negatively affect the ability of retailers and homgyers to secure financing. Higher interest rategd
unfavorably impact our revenues, gross marginsn@bearnings. Our business is also sensitiveaetiects
of inflation, particularly with respect to raw me#d and transportation costs. We may not be &btdfset
inflation through increased selling prices.
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CountryPlace is exposed to market risk relatethecaccessibility and terms of long-term financifig®
loans. In the past, CountryPlace accessed thelassleed securities market to provide term finag@hits
chattel and non-conforming mortgage originatioAs present, asset-backed and mortgage-backed
securitization markets are effectively closed tai@toyPlace and other manufactured housing lenders.
Accordingly, it is unlikely that CountryPlace caontinue to securitize its loan originations as angeto
obtain long-term funding. This inability to contim to securitize its loans caused CountryPlacéstidtinue
origination of chattel loans and non-conforming tgages until other sources of funding are available

We are also exposed to market risks related tdixen rate consumer loans receivable balances. For
fixed rate loans receivable, changes in interdesrdo not change future earnings and cash floas the
receivables. However, changes in interest ratell @ffect the fair market value of the loan pditfo
Assuming CountryPlace’s level of loans held forastment as of December 31, 2011 is held constdiya
increase in average interest rates would decrbadait value of CountryPlace’s portfolio by approately
$5.7 million.

In originating loans for sale, CountryPlace issméarest rate lock commitments (“IRLCS”) to prosipes
borrowers and third-party originators. These IRL&sresent an agreement to extend credit to a lpplicant,
or an agreement to purchase a loan from a thirgrpaiginator, whereby the interest rate on thanlzaset
prior to loan closing or sale. These IRLCs bind @oyPlace to fund the approved loan at the spetiti¢e
regardless of whether interest rates or markeegpffior similar loans have changed between the ctmeni
date and the closing date. As such, outstandin@HRdre subject to interest rate risk and relatad &ale
price risk during the period from the date of tR&C through the earlier of the loan sale date &GR
expiration date. The loan commitments generallgedoetween 30 and 180 days; however, borrowensatre
obligated to close the related loans. As a re@duyntryPlace is subject to fallout risk relatedR&Cs, which
is realized if approved borrowers choose not teelon the loans within the terms of the IRLCs. Avsisg
CountryPlace’s level of IRLCs is held constant%aihcrease in average interest rates would incrimstair
value of CountryPlace’s obligations by approximat$70,000.

Certain of our inventory finance notes receivalnd securitized financings have fixed interest rates
well. For fixed rate instruments, changes in iesérates do not change future earnings and aask from
the receivables. However, changes in interess kaald affect the fair market value of the loantfodio.

Iltem 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the superviai@hwith the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief kircial Officer, of the effectiveness of our discias
controls and procedures (as defined in the Seesiiikchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) Rules 18¢e)
and 15d-15(e)). Based upon that evaluation, ouefGhiecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of the end of the period coverdiis report, our disclosure controls and prared were
effective.

(b) Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Répg

We completed the Palm Harbor transaction duringytieter ended June 30, 2011. Palm Harbor operates
under its own set of systems and internal contrdfe are separately maintaining Palm Harbor’s systand
internal controls until we are able to incorporidtem into our own systems and control environméie
currently expect to complete the integration offPBlarbor’s operations into our systems and control
environment during fiscal year 2013.

Other than as described above, there have beethaoahanges in our internal controls over financia
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13d}E6(d 15d-15(f)) that occurred during the fiscahger
ended December 31, 2011, which have materiallyctete or are reasonably likely to materially affexir
internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Information regarding reportable legal proceediisgontained in Part I, tem Begal Proceedingsn our
Form 10-K. The following describes legal proceedirnfjany, that became reportable during the quarided
December 31, 2011, and, if applicable, amends estdtes descriptions of previously reported legal
proceedings in which there have been material dpwetnts during such quarter.

We are party to certain legal proceedings thatanishe ordinary course and are incidental to our
business. Certain of the claims pending againgt tiseese proceedings allege, among other thingsdbr of
contract and warranty, product liability, constiantdefect and personal injury. Although litigatiisn
inherently uncertain, based on past experiencatanthformation currently available, managementsdoat
believe that the currently pending and threateitigdiion or claims will have a material adversteef on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, liguyditr results of operations. However, future evemnts
circumstances currently unknown to managementdeikrmine whether the resolution of pending or
threatened litigation or claims will ultimately fexa material effect on our consolidated financaition,
liquidity or results of operations in any futurgogting periods.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth mist Report, you should carefully consider the fexto
discussed in Part I, Item 1Risk Factorsin our Form 10-K, which could materially affect duusiness,
financial condition or future results. The risksdebed in this Report and in our Form 10-K arethetonly
risks facing our Company. Additional risks and utaiaties not currently known to us or that we eutty
deem to be immaterial also may materially advera#fgct our business, financial condition and/oeragping
results.

ltem 6. Exhibits
See Exhibit Index.

All other items required under Part Il are omittegtause they are not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitieh&nxge Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usigeed thereunto duly authorized.

Cavco Industries, Inc.
Registrant

February 7, 2012 /s/ Joseph H. Stegmayer
Joseph H. Stegmayer
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

February 7, 2012 /s/ Daniel L. Urness
Daniel L. Urness
Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Exhibit

31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive OfficeriBuant to Rule 13-14(a) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officer fmwant to Rule 13-14(a) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

32 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer andi€hFinancial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Sectim 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Joseph H. Stegmayer, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 108f@avco Industries, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statemmeade, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading witleotsp the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements oéimer financial information included in this repo
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash flofvhe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentelisnreport;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15€)) f
the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisi@ngore that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtigreport is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our sup&m, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiverdéghe disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsdnternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgerter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materifibgt@d, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over fic&al reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation

internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons perfogihe equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably ki adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiatination; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal casitover financial reporting.

Dated: February 7, 2012

By:

/s/ Joseph H. Stegmayer

Joseph H. Stegmayer
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Sectim 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Daniel L. Urness, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 18f@avco Industries, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statesmmade, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading witfect$p the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$péimer financial information included in this repo
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash flofvhe
registrant as of, and for, the periods presentedignreport;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15¢)) f
the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisi@mgore that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigriesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our sup&m, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the pezption of financial statements for external pugsos
in accordance with generally accepted accountimgiples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiverddbe disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgelrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materifitgted, or is reasonably likely to materially affe
the registrant’s internal control over financigboeting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
registrant’s board of directors (or persons perfogithe equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably kkil adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiatination; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

Dated: February 7, 2012

By: /s/ Daniel L. Urness
Daniel L. Urness
Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, As
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Geyl Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Cavcdustries, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-Q floe
period ending December 31, 2011, as filed withSbkeurities and Exchange Commission on the dat®here
(the “Report”), we, Joseph H. Stegmayer and Ddniklrness, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finiahc
Officer, respectively, of the Registrant, certiyrsuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursu&#Qd6 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to our knogéed

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act
of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and
results of operations of the Registrant.

February 7, 2012

/s/  Joseph H. Stegmayer
Joseph H. Stegmayer
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

/s/  Daniel L. Urness
Daniel L. Urness
Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer




